
  

 
Meeting of the  

 

HEALTH SCRUTINY 
PANEL 

________________________________________________ 
 

Tuesday, 27 July 2010 at 6.30 p.m. 
______________________________________ 

 

A G E N D A 
__________________________________________ 

 

VENUE 
Ground Floor Meeting Room of Burdett House, Mile End Hospital. 

Bancroft Road London E1 4DG 
 
Members: 
 

Deputies (if any): 
Chair: Councillor Tim Archer  
Vice-Chair: Councillor Rania Khan   
  
Councillor Shelina Aktar 
Councillor Abdul Asad 
Councillor Alibor Choudhury 
Councillor Lutfur Rahman 
Councillor Kosru Uddin 
 

Councillor Dr. Emma Jones, (Designated 
Deputy representing Councillor Tim 
Archer) 
Councillor Mohammed Abdul Mukit MBE, 
(Designated Deputy representing 
Councillors Shelina Akhtar, Abdul Asad, 
Alibor Choudhury, Rania Khan, Lutfur 
Rahman and Kosru Uddin) 
 

[Note: The quorum for this body is 3 Members]. 
 
Co-opted Members:  
  
Myra Garrett – (THINk) 
Dr Amjad Rahi – (THINk) 
 
If you require any further information relating to this meeting, would like to request a large 
print, Braille or audio version of this document, or would like to discuss access arrangements 
or any other special requirements, please contact: Zoe Folley, Democratic Services,  
Tel: 020 7364 4877, E-mail: zoe.folley@towerhamlets.gov.uk 



 
 
 
 
 

LONDON BOROUGH OF TOWER HAMLETS 
 

HEALTH SCRUTINY PANEL  
 

Tuesday, 27 July 2010 
 

6.30 p.m. 
 

 BURDETT HOUSE, MILE END HOSPITAL, SITE MAP AND TRAVEL 
DIRECTIONS 

   
A site map and travel directions to the venue is attached.  
 

Please follow signs to the Blue Zone from the main entrance until you reach 
Burdett House and then follow signs to the Ground Floor meeting room. 
  

If you have any difficulties please call Scrutiny Policy Officer: Katie 
McDonald  07914 850073.   
 

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   
 
 To receive any apologies for absence. 

 
2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   
 
 To note any declarations of interest made by Members, including those restricting 

Members from voting on the questions detailed in Section 106 of the Local Government 
Finance Act, 1992.  See attached note from the Chief Executive. 
 

 PAGE 
NUMBER 

WARD(S) 
AFFECTED 

3. UNRESTRICTED MINUTES  
 

7 - 12  

 To confirm as a correct record of the proceedings the 
unrestricted minutes of the ordinary meeting of Health 
Scrutiny Panel held on 22nd July 2010. 
 

  

4. REPORTS FOR CONSIDERATION  
 

  

5.1 NHS White Paper   
 

  
5.2 Six Lives Panel Project - NHS London Health Self-

Assessment   
 

13 - 20  

5.3 Health Scrutiny Evaluation - Summary and Action Plan   
 

21 - 34  
5.4 Health Scrutiny Panel Work Programme 2010/11 - 

2011- 2012   
 

35 - 44  

5.5 Health for North East London - Response to INEL 
JOSC recommendations   

 
45 - 84  



 
 
 
 

6. ANY OTHER BUSINESS WHICH THE CHAIR 
CONSIDERS TO BE URGENT  

 

  

 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

  
 
Tower Hamlets PCT is located at Mile End Hospital, Bancroft Road, London E1 
4DG,  and is between Mile End and Stepney Green Underground Station.  The 
route from each station is as follows: 
 
Train 
Mile End station is served by District, Hammersmith & Central Line - Exit station 
turn left proceed along Mile End Road and take the 3rd turning on your right. 
(Approx 10 mins walk) situated behind Queen Mary University 
 
Stepney Green is served by District, and Hammersmith Line – Exit station turn 
left proceed down Mile End Road, and take the 2nd turning on your left. (Approx 5 
mins walk or less) 
 
Bus 
Served by the 25 bus route 
 

Agenda Annex

Page 1



Page 2

This page is intentionally left blank



       

HOW TO FIND MILE END HOSPITAL 

Our Address  
   
Mile End Hospital  
Bancroft Road  
Ground Floor Burdett House 
London  
E1 4DG  
 
By Road  
Mile End Hospital’s main entrance is situated in Bancroft Road.  
You may turn into Bancroft Road from the Mile End Road only when approaching from the 
west. There is no entry to Bancroft Road when approaching from the other direction - ie no 
right turn - use Globe Road and Alderney Road instead.  
 
Car Parking  
Parking is limited. There are only four pay and display parking bays on the Mile End site. On 
site parking costs of 80p per 30 minutes. The meters accept 5p, 10p, 20p, 50p, £1 and £2 
coins and no change is given.  
 
People who are either attending an clinic appointment or delivering/collecting equipment at 
the Wheelchair Service , can park for a short while in the Departments specially designated 
parking bays.  These are located immediately in-front of the Wheelchair Service.   
 
There are pay and display meters in surrounding streets but the majority of spaces are for 
resident permit holders only.  
 
By Bus  
Mile End Road - No 25  
Globe Road - No 309  
Grove Road - Nos 277 and D6  
Roman Road - Nos 8 and D6  
Terminating at Mile End Station - Nos D5 and D7  
 
By Underground  
Mile End Station - District, Central and Hammersmith & City Lines  
Stepney Green - District Line and Hammersmith & City Line  
 
Disabled Access  
There are 12 parking spaces for disabled badge holders within the hospital site and also 
outside the therapy unit centre in Longnor Road at no charge. 
The main entrance is suitable for wheelchair users. There is lift access to all floors in the 
main hospital block.  
 
 
© Tower Hamlets Primary Care Trust 2006 
 

Page 3



Page 4

This page is intentionally left blank



1 
 
D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\7\4\6\AI00025647\Notefromchiefexecutiveredeclarationofinterests07010850.doc 
    

DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS - NOTE FROM THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
 
 
This note is guidance only.  Members should consult the Council’s Code of Conduct for further 
details.  Note: Only Members can decide if they have an interest therefore they must make their 
own decision.  If in doubt as to the nature of an interest it is advisable to seek advice prior to 
attending at a meeting.   
 
Declaration of interests for Members 
 
Where Members have a personal interest in any business of the authority as described in 
paragraph 4 of the Council’s Code of Conduct (contained in part 5 of the Council’s Constitution) 
then s/he must disclose this personal interest as in accordance with paragraph 5 of the Code.  
Members must disclose the existence and nature of the interest at the start of the meeting and 
certainly no later than the commencement of the item or where the interest becomes apparent.   
 
You have a personal interest in any business of your authority where it relates to or is likely to 
affect: 
 

(a) An interest that you must register 
 
(b) An interest that is not on the register, but where the well-being or financial position of you, 

members of your family, or people with whom you have a close association, is likely to be 
affected by the business of your authority more than it would affect the majority of 
inhabitants of the ward affected by the decision. 

 
Where a personal interest is declared a Member may stay and take part in the debate and 
decision on that item.   
 
What constitutes a prejudicial interest? - Please refer to paragraph 6 of the adopted Code of 
Conduct. 
 
Your personal interest will also be a prejudicial interest in a matter if (a), (b) and either (c) 
or (d) below apply:- 
 

(a) A member of the public, who knows the relevant facts, would reasonably think that your 
personal interests are so significant that it is likely to prejudice your judgment of the 
public interests; AND 

(b) The matter does not fall within one of the exempt categories of decision listed in 
paragraph 6.2 of the Code; AND EITHER   

(c) The matter affects your financial position or the financial interest of a body with which 
you are associated; or 

(d) The matter relates to the determination of a licensing or regulatory application 
 

The key points to remember if you have a prejudicial interest in a matter being discussed at a 
meeting:- 
 

i. You must declare that you have a prejudicial interest, and the nature of that interest, as 
soon as that interest becomes apparent to you; and  
 

ii. You must leave the room for the duration of consideration and decision on the item and 
not seek to influence the debate or decision unless (iv) below applies; and  

Agenda Item 2

Page 5



2 
 
D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\7\4\6\AI00025647\Notefromchiefexecutiveredeclarationofinterests07010850.doc 
    

 
iii. You must not seek to improperly influence a decision in which you have a prejudicial 

interest.   
 

iv. If Members of the public are allowed to speak or make representations at the meeting, 
give evidence or answer questions about the matter, by statutory right or otherwise (e.g. 
planning or licensing committees), you can declare your prejudicial interest but make 
representations.  However, you must immediately leave the room once you have 
finished your representations and answered questions (if any).  You cannot remain in 
the meeting or in the public gallery during the debate or decision on the matter. 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 6



HEALTH SCRUTINY PANEL, 22/06/2010 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

1 

LONDON BOROUGH OF TOWER HAMLETS 
 

MINUTES OF THE HEALTH SCRUTINY PANEL 
 

HELD AT 7.30 P.M. ON TUESDAY, 22 JUNE 2010 
 

ROOM M72, TOWN HALL, MULBERRY PLACE, 5 CLOVE CRESCENT, LONDON, 
E14 2BG 

 
Members Present: 
 
Councillor Tim Archer (Chair) 
 
Councillor Shelina Akhtar 
Councillor Abdul Asad 
Councillor Alibor Choudhury 
Councillor Kosru Uddin 
Myra Garrett 
Dr Amjad Rahi 
 
  
 
Other Councillors Present: 
 
  
 
Co-opted Members Present: 
 
Myra Garrett – (THINk representative) 
Dr Amjad Rahi – (THINk representative) 

 
Guests Present: 
Dianne Barham  – Director, THINk  

 
Officers Present: 
 
Deborah Cohen – (Service Head, Commissioning and Strategy, 

Adults Health and Wellbeing) 
Katie McDonald – Scrutiny Policy Officer 
Rachael Chapman – (Strategy & Policy Officer) 
Hafsha Ali – (Acting Joint Service Head Scrutiny & Equalities) 

 
 –  

 
 

1. ELECTION OF VICE-CHAIR  
 
The Chair moved and Councillor Abdul Asad seconded Councillor Rania Khan 
as Vice-Chair. 
 

Agenda Item 3

Page 7



HEALTH SCRUTINY PANEL, 22/06/2010 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

2 

The Committee unanimously RESOLVED that Councillor Rania Khan be 
elected Vice-Chair of the Health Scrutiny Panel. 

2. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
Apologies for lateness were received from Myra Garrett.  
Ben Vinter (Head of Corporate Affairs NHS Tower Hamlets) 
Paul James (Borough Director, East London Foundation Trust)   
 

3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
No declarations of interest were made. 

4. UNRESTRICTED MINUTES  
 
The minutes of the meeting of the Panel held on 23rd March 2010 were 
agreed as a correct record. 
 

5. REPORTS FOR CONSIDERATION  
 

6. HEALTH SCRUTINY PANEL TERMS OF REFERENCE, QUORUM, 
MEMBERSHIP AND DATES OF MEETINGS (HSP001/011)  
 
The Committee noted its Terms of Reference, Quorum, Membership and 
Dates of future meetings as set out in the report. 

7. MEMBERS INDUCTION  
 
Improving Health & Wellbeing in Tower Hamlets 
 
Members heard a presentation given by Dr Ian Basnett, the Director of Public 
Health for Tower Hamlets, which included a snapshot of the population of 
Tower Hamlets, together with determinants of the healthiness of residents.  
From this data and examination of higher than national average incidences of 
illnesses suffered by local people, strategies have been created to reduce 
these events. 
 
Sucessful work includes investment in Primary Care, providing networking 
between GP practices and social services, specialist GP practices with 
expertise in an area, such as anti-coagulation, ‘care packages’ for the 
treatment of diabetes and other illnesses. 
 
Councillor Alibor Choudhury asked what work was done on relieving chronic 
non-life threatening conditions.  Dr Basnett said that care was based on the 
Joint Strategic Needs Assessment. 
 
Councillor Abdul Asad asked if ethnicity was recorded with the mortality 
figures.  Dr Basnett responded that monitoring was not routine, but deaths 
were linked to GP registers.  From preliminary data mortality rates were 
higher in the white population than in the Bangladeshi population. 
 
Councillor Kosru Uddin asked what parts of the Borough had the highest 
mortality rates.  Dr Basnett responded that there was a correlation with levels 
of deprivation, but no specific data about service provision. 

Page 8



HEALTH SCRUTINY PANEL, 22/06/2010 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

3 

 
Dr Amjad Rahi asked if there were graphs showing incidences of diabetes in 
each Local Areal Partnership. 
 
Tower Hamlets Involvement Network (THINk) 
 
Members heard a presentation from Ms Dianne Barham, Director of THINk; 
THINk was a network of patients, residents, user & community groups 
working together to improve health & social care in Tower Hamlets.  Ms 
Barham explained that THINk actively solicited views of residents and users 
of services, then analysed the data before conveying people’s views to 
commissioners, providers and scrutineers of local health and social care 
services.  Recent successes included agreeing timescales for responses from 
organisations, resolving issues such as involuntary removal of patients from 
GPs lists, inadequate facilities for disabled patients at the Royal London 
Hospital, retrieval of ordered glasses from a closed down optician’s shop and 
the continuation of funding for a Mental Health Support Officer at the Carers’ 
Centre.  Both the current Health Scrutiny Panel Co-Opted members were also 
members of THINk. 
 
The Chair asked how residents interacted with THINk; Ms Barham responded 
that people completed questionnaires, surveys, dropped into the office, spoke 
to outreach staff at community events etc.  THINk saw itself as a critical 
friend, and tried to resolve issues with commissioners initially, then would 
bring the issue to Health Scrutiny Panel, the Care Quality Commission and 
finally the Secretary of State. 
 
Councillor Alibor Choudhury asked Ms Barham to name one big achievement; 
Ms Barham responded that the level of comment from the community was 
inspiring, and the agreement of laid down timescales for responses to data 
from commissioners of services was also an achievement. 
 
Ms Deborah Cohen (Service Head, Disability & Health) said that THINk was 
embedded in quality control, and that was not always comfortable for 
providers. 
 
Dr Basnett said that input from THINk was welcome, and had been a help in 
formulating the Joint Strategy. 
 
Councillor Asad asked how many people had been removed from GPs’ lists, 
Ms Barham responded that THINk had worked with Social Action for Health; 
overall there had been 600+ comments on the issue. 
 
The Chair said that Ms Garrett had brought the issue to the attention of the 
Health Scrutiny Panel, and the Primary Care Trust (PCT) had been asked to 
attend the Health Scrutiny Panel to explain what had happened.  The PCT 
was able to put those people back on lists who wanted to return to their old 
GPs. 
 
Councillor Aktar asked if interviews were one to ones; Ms Barham said that 
some interviews were long, however information was sought from members 

Page 9



HEALTH SCRUTINY PANEL, 22/06/2010 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

4 

everyday.  The Secretary of State had indicated that ‘LINks’ organisations 
would be retained, possibly funded through a national body.  This would be 
part of a trend towards empowering local residents. 
 
Ms Garret asked if the Council had a shopfront premises that THINk could 
use; the lease on its current accommodation was running out. 
 
Health & Social Care 
 
Ms Deborah Cohen and Ms Rachel Chapman described the changes in 
provision by local authorities, emphasising that a range of Council run 
services contribute to the work of the teams, such as housing.  Local 
authorities are providing less and commissioning more, with larger budgets.  It 
should be noted that there is a high incidence of learning disabilities in Tower 
Hamlets. 
 
In response to Councillor Choudhury’s question on the debate about care in 
the community, whether this is needs led or resource led, and what impact 
would Government cuts have, Ms Cohen said that adult & social care was 
being transformed, and moving towards a more preventative service.  Cuts to 
preventative services would mean higher costs for longer periods in the 
future. 
 
In response to Ms Garnett’s question about when free swimming for older 
people would stop (a change announced in the Budget), investigations would 
be made. 
 
In response to the Chair’s question about the personalisation of care, and 
care packages, users are offered the facility of creating their own packages: 
hence a season ticket to a leisure centre may be an alternative to a day 
centre.  It should be noted that there is a strict audit trail. 
 
The Scrutiny Workplan for 2010/2011 
 
Members divided into two workshops, considering the Long list of Review  
Topics for 2010/2011.  Outcomes of their discussions are listed below:- 
 
Group 1 
 

I. Mental Health: Members felt work needed to be done on GP diagnosis, 
links with social services and more cooperation between mental health 
services and local authorities. 

II. A whole system review of the three - Trusts serving Tower Hamlets.  
Ms Garrett asked what the implications for the forced amalgamation of 
the Trust would be. 

III. The reconfiguring of local services for example, the introduction of 
polyclinics and public information.  Ms Garrett said that if patients could 
see a consultant in hospital, or someone equally qualified in a GP 
surgery, they would need persuading that the level of treatment would 
be the same.   The Chair said that he was not sure that people 

Page 10



HEALTH SCRUTINY PANEL, 22/06/2010 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

5 

understood the polysystems issue; Members would find themselves 
explaining to residents. 

 
Group 2 
 

I. Focus on Mental Health: particularly dementia – diagnosis and 
preventative work 

II. Diagnosis in general 
III. Safeguarding elders from abuse 
IV. Depression – there were equality issues for black & ethnic minority 

women, and need for support for their families. 
 
Further topics suggested included: polysystems (later in the year), cancer 
diagnosis, dementia diagnosis and structural changes in the Primary Care 
Trusts. 
 
The Chair said that during the last municipal year, the Panel had conducted a 
comprehensive review on Childhood Obesity which had been well received 
and the final recommendations would be going to Cabinet later in the year. 
   
The two groups had highlighted a number of good subjects; and health 
services were facing changes imposed by the new Government.  It may be 
that the Panel would want some space capacity to examine these at a later 
date. Therfore the chair suggested that it might be more sensible to conduct 
two challenge sessions earlier in the year with the possibility that one of these 
could lead to a longer review in 2011.  
 
In response to Councillor Choudhury, the Chair said that the Panel would 
meet formally 5 times a year, based on the Council calendar. 
 
 
Members were asked to forward their comments to Ms McDonald. 
The July meeting of the Panel would see the ‘Six Lives’ Department of Health 
presentation, and the external evaluation would also come to the meeting. 
 
 

8. ANY OTHER BUSINESS WHICH THE CHAIR CONSIDERS TO BE 
URGENT  
 
There was no urgent business. 

The meeting ended at 8.45 p.m.  
 
 

Chair, Councillor Tim Archer 
Health Scrutiny Panel 

 

Page 11



Page 12

This page is intentionally left blank



Committee 
 
Health Scrutiny Panel 
 

Date 
 
27 July 2010 

Classification 
 
Unrestricted 
 

Report 
No. 
 
 

Agenda Item 
No. 
2  
 
 

Report of:  
 
Six Lives Project  
 
NHS Tower Hamlets  
London Borough of Tower Hamlets 
 
Presenting Officer: 
 
Jane McClean Associate Director 
Commissioning (Long Term Conditions) 
for NHS Tower Hamlets. 
 
Chair of the Health Sub Group of the 
Learning Disabilities Partnership Board. 
  
 

Title:  
 
Six Lives Panel Project  
NHS London health self-assessment 
 
 
Ward(s) affected:  
 
All  

 
 
1. Summary 
 
This briefing sets out the background to both the Six Lives Panel Project and 
the subsequent NHS London health self-assessment for learning disabilities.   
 
2. Recommendations 

 
The Health Scrutiny Panel is asked to consider and comment on the 
proposals set out in the report and DVD presentation. 
 
 
  
 
 
 

Agenda Item 5.2

Page 13



Page 14

This page is intentionally left blank



 1 

 

 
 
Six Lives Panel Project / NHS London health self-assessment 
Report for the Health Scrutiny Panel 
 

1. Introduction  
This briefing sets out the background to both the Six Lives Panel Project and 
the subsequent NHS London health self-assessment for learning disabilities.   
 

2. Death by Indifference 
In March 2007 Mencap published a report entitled Death by Indifference which 
examined the cases of six individuals who died whilst receiving NHS care. 
Whilst the families of the six individuals had lodged formal complaints to the 
Healthcare Commission, Mencap called on the government to launch an 
independent investigation into all six deaths and address their claim that there 
is institutionalised discrimination against people with learning disabilities within 
the NHS.  
 

3. The Six Lives Report 
In July 2008 the Report of the Independent Inquiry into Access to Healthcare 
for People with Learning Disabilities (also known as the Six Lives Report) was 
published following the independent inquiry chaired by Sir Jonathan Michael. 
The Inquiry concluded that people with learning disabilities were less likely to 
receive the most effective care to meet their needs, and whilst there were 
examples of good practice in some areas, this was not mainstreamed. In 
short, there was often a gap between policy, the law and the delivery of 
effective health services.  
 
In response to the publication of the Six Lives report, the Ombudsmen made 
three recommendations in March 2009. Of most relevance for NHS and Local 
Authorities was that all NHS and social care organisations in England should 
urgently review: 
 
� The effectiveness of the systems they have in place to enable them to 

understand and plan to meet the full range of needs of people with 
learning disabilities in their areas, and; 

 
� The capacity and capability of the services they provide and/or 

commission for their local populations to meet the additional and often 
complex needs of people with learning disabilities; and: 

 
� Should report accordingly to those responsible for the governance of 

those organisations within 12 months of the publication of the 
Ombudsmen’s report. 

 
4. The Six Lives Panel  

In order to respond to the Ombudsmen’s recommendations it was proposed 
that Tower Hamlets hold a Six Lives Panel meeting in order to fulfill our 
obligations. The Panel were made up of a variety of professionals from across 

Page 15



 2 

the NHS / social care sector (primary care, acute care and commissioning), 
along with an independent Chair, David Morris. (David was selected due to his 
considerable experience of the disability rights movement and links to the 
borough. He was involved with the process from its inception, until he sadly 
passed away in April 2010).  
 
The Learning Disabilities Partnership Board took a lead on the Panel Project 
with a view to it being a starting point for establishing a Health sub-group. One 
of the key outcomes of the Panel was to draw up an action plan. This would 
then form the basis of the Health sub-group’s work programme and they 
would be responsible for taking this work forward.  
 
Also key was the involvement of service users and carers. To this end a 
number of workshop sessions were held prior to the Panel to ask people 
about their experiences of accessing healthcare services. The Rix Centre, a 
learning disability multi-media advocacy organisation, ran and facilitated these 
sessions in conjunction with three service user ‘champions’. These individuals 
were trained in consultation techniques and the use of camera / recording 
equipment. This approach allowed those who may not have felt comfortable 
attending the Panel meeting to give their views.  
 
The Panel took place in November 2009. Service users and carers were in 
attendance to ask questions and recount their experiences, and the Panel 
were also shown a DVD of the workshop sessions run by the Rix Centre and 
the champions. The Panel meeting itself was also filmed and the footage 
subsequently edited with that of the workshops to produce the My Health My 
Say My Way: Communicating effectively with people with learning disabilities 
DVD.   
 
Following the meeting it was intended that members of the Panel would report 
back to their organisations and reconvene in early 2010 to report progress 
and agree an action plan to take forward.  
 

5. The NHS London health self-assessment process  
NHS London was responsible for co-ordinating a Health Self Assessment of 
services for people with learning disabilities across all London PCTs, to meet 
the Ombudsmen’s recommendations. 
 

Each PCT was asked to convene a Big Health Check Up Day where people 
with learning disabilities, their family members and professionals were to be 
involved and have their say, by March 2010. Given the similarities between 
this and the Six Lives Panel, the decision was taken to combine the two 
processes and for the reconvened meeting of the Panel to be the Big Health 
Check Up Day for Tower Hamlets.  
 
As part of the self-assessment process, staff from within the Council and NHS 
Tower Hamlets undertook a joint exercise to gather data and evidence to 
inform our assessment of access to healthcare services for people with 
learning disabilities in the borough. As a requirement preparatory work was 
undertaken in the form of ‘Getting Ready Meetings’ which involved talking to 

Page 16



 3 

service users, carers, providers and the Learning Disabilities Partnership 
Board about how they rate services. All of this information and views were 
considered as part of our submission.  
 
The Six Lives Panel Big Health Check Up day was held in February 2010. 
This involved members of the original Panel along with service users and 
carers meeting to discuss the issues in detail and vote on what they felt was 
an appropriate RAG rating for our self-assessment submission. This 
interactive day was again filmed by the Rix Centre and involved around 
seventy service users from a range of backgrounds talking frankly about their 
experiences of a range of health related issues, from healthy lifestyles to 
hospital admissions.  

 
6.  Key headlines from the self-assessment 

The PCT and LBTH had already agreed to complete a Joint Strategic Needs 
Assessment for Learning Disabilities (this was completed in April 2010). The 
NHS London Self Assessment process for Tower Hamlets was completed on 
the 28th May 2010. Tower Hamlets received an overall AMBER rating for its 
self-assessment.  
A Health Sub Group of the Learning Disabilities Partnership Board has been 
established to develop an action plan to tackle areas highlighted in the self-
assessment exercise, the Six Lives Panel and the Joint Strategic Needs 
Assessment. 

 
7. Health Scrutiny Panel input 

The Health Scrutiny Panel are asked to review the self-assessment results 
attached at appendix A and agree the action plan of the newly established 
Learning Disabilities Partnership Board Health Sub Group. 

 

Page 17



 4 

Appendix A 
Results from the Self-Assessment for Tower Hamlets 
 
Feedback from NHS London 

• The Big Health Check Day was a great success with good 
representation from service users and carers and also of staff from 
varied health and social care backgrounds. 

• NHS London wish to use NHS Tower Hamlets as a gold standard 
example for reporting returns for next year and also to use our DVD on 
the Big Health Check event. 

• Reports and evidence to support the self assessment were supplied in 
a very thorough, structured and systematised way, which made it 
easier to review and analyse. It was evident that a lot of hard work went 
into completing the exercise. 

• From the evidence supplied there is a sense that services within Tower 
Hamlets are working well together. It was reported that 94 % of GP’s 
are signed up to the local enhanced service, good work is going on with 
the acute and mental health sectors and the dementia strategy includes 
the needs of people with learning disabilities. 

 
Identified Priorities for 2010-2011 
Target 1 – Plans are in place to meet the needs of people who are no longer 
receiving treatment which requires in-patient care in an acute/long-stay 
residential facility or hospital 
 

• There are no people from Tower Hamlets living in long stay hospitals 
and no one is living in NHS campus accommodation. Three people are 
reported to be in mental health units for assessment and treatment 
under restricted sections of the Mental Health Act. 

• It will remain important to review people in Assessment and Treatment 
beds and to have Person-Centred Discharge Plans to reduce the 
potential for delayed transfers of care and to minimise the potential for 
resources remaining tied up in beds, rather than being used 
imaginatively to prevent admissions. 

 
Target 2 – PCT’s are working closely with the local Partnership Board and 
statutory and other partners, to address the health inequalities faced by 
people with learning disabilities. 
 

• To improve the information available in Primary Care regarding the 
particular health needs of people with learning disabilities and their 
family carers, through the use of existing data collection processes. 

• To increase the numbers of people who have a Health Action Plan and 
to link this explicitly to the Annual Health Check. 

• To produce accessible information on available health services, as well 
as information which informs people of their rights and mechanisms 
through which they can give feedback to organisations about their 
experiences using services. 

Page 18



 5 

• To improve the range and accessibility of health promotion and 
education opportunities for people with learning disabilities and their 
carers. 

 
Target 3 – People with learning disabilities who are in services that the NHS 
commissions or provides, are safe. 
 

• To improve access to acute hospitals through working with colleagues 
across organisations and teams to review the progress of current 
initiatives, and then identify actions which will move this target forward. 

• To conduct an audit of acute trusts on issues of treatment and 
significant care decisions for patients who have learning disabilities and 
to assess staff knowledge and skills in this area (to be completed by 
March 2011) 

• To pro-actively utilise PALS and PPI to seek feedback from service 
users and their carers, and for this to be included in annual complaint 
and compliment reporting. In this way, organisations will also be able to 
demonstrate ‘reasonable adjustment’ of existing Complaints 
Processes. 

 
Target 4 – progress is being made in the health service reforms and 
development described in ‘Valuing People Now’ 
 

• To work with the Learning Disabilities Partnership Board to develop 
strategies which will improve the care of people with a range of 
conditions, including Challenging Needs, Mental Health and Autistic 
Spectrum Disorder, as well as to improve the experiences of young 
people in Transition to Adult Services. 

 

Page 19



Page 20

This page is intentionally left blank



Committee 
 
Health Scrutiny Panel 
 

Date 
 
27th July 2010 

Classification 
 
Unrestricted 
 

Report 
No. 
 
 

Agenda Item 
No. 
 
 

 

Report of:  
 
 
Originating Officer(s):  
 
Katie McDonald 
Scrutiny Policy Officer  
 

Title:  
 

Health Scrutiny Evaluation – Summary and Action 
Plan 

 
Ward(s) affected: All 

 
 
 
 
1. Summary 
 
1.1  This report submits the Summary and Action Plan in response to the Health 

Scrutiny Evaluation conducted in January and February 2010. The Final 
Evaluation Report was considered by the Health Scrutiny Panel in March 2010.   

 
2.  Recommendations 
 
 
 
2.1  The Health Scrutiny Panel is asked to consider and comment on the Action 

Plan.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT, 1972 (AS AMENDED) SECTION 100D 
 

LIST OF “BACKGROUND PAPERS” USED IN THE PREPARATION OF THIS REPORT 

Background paper 
 
 

Name and telephone number of and address 
where open to inspection 
 
Katie McDonald 
Ext 0941 

Agenda Item 5.3

Page 21



3.  Background 
 
 
3.1 As the Health Scrutiny Panel’s four- year work programme approached its end.  

It was agreed in October 2009 that it would be beneficial for an external 
evaluation. 

 
LB Tower Hamlets commissioned Tim Young, a scrutiny advisor, to carry out 
the evaluation and submit a report in February 2010. 

 
3.2  The review is based on the Centre for Public Scrutiny’s principles of good 

scrutiny and the evaluation tested views from across the authority and its 
partners on the effectiveness of the four-year programme. The bulk of the work 
involved in this evaluation took place in January and early February 2010. The 
approach was based on a review of extensive documentation from the Council 
and all health partners; a range of interviews with Members, council officers and 
health partner’s personnel as well as an observation of the Health Scrutiny 
Panel meeting on 26th January 2010.  

 
3.3 It was an important piece of work identifying both strengths and weaknesses as 

well as providing recommendations for improvements to the HSP as we look to 
the 2010/2011 programme.  

 
3.4     The Summary and Action Plan were produced in response to this report and  

It is important that they are formally discussed and agreed by the Members of 
the Health Scrutiny Panel. The Summary with the Action Plan is attached at 
Appendix A.  

 
4. Concurrent Report of the Assistant Chief Executive (Legal) 
 
4.1  The  Health and Social Care Act 2001, added to the duties of Overview and 

Scrutiny Committees to set up  Health Scrutiny Panels to review and scrutinise 
matters relating to the health service in the authority’s area and to make 
reports and recommendations on such matters in accordance with the relevant 
regulations. 

  
5.  Comments of the Chief Financial Officer 
 
5.1 This report provides the Summary and Action Plan in response to the Health 

Scrutiny Evaluation conducted in January and February 2010 and the final 
report was subsequently considered in March.  

 
5.2 There are no specific financial implications emanating from this report, and any 

additional costs that arise from implementing the Action Plan, must be 
contained within directorate revenue budgets. Also, if the Council agrees 
further action in response to this report’s recommendations then officers will be 
obliged to seek the appropriate financial approval before further financial 
commitments are made. 

 
6. One Tower Hamlets consideration 

Page 22



 
6.1 This Action Plan incorporates key aspects of One Tower Hamlets 

considerations to strengthen community leadership and tackling inequalities 
which is central to the work of the Health Scrutiny Panel and this is reflected in 
the actions around access to services its aims to strengthen community 
leadership through increasing resident engagement in the democratic process 
of health scrutiny.  

 
 
7. Risk Management 
 
7.1     There are no direct risk management implications arising from Action Plan.  

 

Page 23



Ap
en

dix
 A
:  

 He
alt

h S
cru

tin
y E

va
lua

tio
n A

cti
on

 Pl
an
 - M

ay
 20

10
 

  1. 
Co

nte
xt 

 In 
Fe

bru
ary

 20
10
, T

ow
er 

Ha
ml
et’
s H

ea
lth
 Sc

rut
iny

 fu
nc
tio
n w

as
 in
de
pe
nd
en
tly
 re

vie
we

d b
y, 
Tim

 Yo
un
g a

n a
ss
oc
iat
e o

f th
e C

en
tre

 fo
r 

Pu
bli
c S

cru
tin
y. 
Th

e S
cru

tin
y T

ea
m 
ad
vis

ed
 at
 th
e l
as
t H

SP
 m
ee
tin
g o

f th
e 2

00
9/2

01
0 m

un
icip

al 
ye
ar 

tha
t th

ey
 w
ou
ld 
res

po
nd
 to
 th
e 

ev
alu

ati
on
 w
ith
 an

 ac
tio
n p

lan
. 

  2. 
Su

mm
ary

:  
 Th

e e
va
lua

tio
n a

ck
no
wle

dg
es
 th
at 
mu

ch
 ha

s b
ee
n d

on
e t
o b

uil
d t
he
 cr
ed
ibi
lity

 an
d e

ffe
cti
ve
ne
ss
 of
 he

alt
h s

cru
tin
y i
n t
he
 bo

rou
gh
, s
tat
ing

 
tha

t th
is 
im
pro

ve
me

nt 
wa

s r
ec
og
nis

ed
 by

 th
e C

ou
nc
il’s

 C
orp

ora
te 
As

se
ss
me

nt 
in 
20
08
 in
 w
hic

h i
ns
pe
cto

rs 
jud

ge
d t
ha
t s
cru

tin
y l
oc
all
y 

ma
ke
s a

 re
al 
an
d p

os
itiv

e d
iffe

ren
ce
 w
ith
in 
To

we
r H

am
let
s a

nd
 it 
is 
ev
ide

nt 
tha

t H
ea
lth
 Sc

rut
iny

 ha
s p

lay
ed
 a 
lar
ge
 pa

rt i
n t
his

. T
he
re 

ha
ve
 be

en
 a 
nu
mb

er 
of 
su
cc
es
se
s i
n c

on
trib

uti
ng
 to
 th
e s

ha
pin

g a
nd
 im

pro
ve
me

nt 
of 
se
rvi
ce
s s

tra
teg

ies
 an

d p
rov

isio
n a

im
ed
 at
 ta
ck
lin
g 

loc
al 
he
alt
h i
ss
ue
s, 
for

 ex
am

ple
 th
rou

gh
 th
e G

P a
nd
 de

nti
str
y s

erv
ice

s a
nd
 to
ba
cc
o c

es
sa
tio
n r

ev
iew

s. 
  

 To
we

r H
am

let
s h

as
 m
an
y o

f th
e r

eq
uir
ed
 el
em

en
ts 
of 
eff
ec
tiv
e s

cru
tin
y i
n p

lac
e, 
the

 ev
alu

ati
on
 fo
un
d t
ha
t: 

 
• 

Th
e H

SP
 ha

s w
ork

ed
 ha

rd 
to 
co
ns
tru

ct 
a c

oh
ere

nt 
sc
rut

iny
 pr

og
ram

me
, ta

kin
g a

cc
ou
nt 
of 
oth

er 
au
dit
s a

nd
 re

vie
ws

, a
nd
 ha

s 
so
ug
ht 
to 
pro

vid
e e

ffe
cti
ve
 pu

bli
c a

cc
ou
nta

bil
ity
.  

• 
Ov

er 
the

 fo
ur 

ye
ars

 th
e H

SP
 ha

s t
ak
en
 bo

ard
 su

bs
tan

tia
l p
iec

es
 of
 w
ork

, in
vo
lvin

g j
oin

t h
ea
lth
 ov

erv
iew

 an
d s

cru
tin
y c

om
mi
tte
es
 

on
 a 
su
b-r

eg
ion

al 
an
d p

an
-Lo

nd
on
 ba

sis
. 

• 
On

e o
f th

e H
SP

’s 
str
en
gth

s i
s t
ha
t it
 ha

s b
ee
n b

roa
dly

 ef
fec

tiv
e a

t ‘t
he
 re

ac
tiv
e a

ge
nd
a’ 
– i
n p

ick
ing

 up
 an

d d
ea
lin
g w

ith
 lo
ca
l 

res
ide

nts
’ p
res

sin
g h

ea
lth
 is
su
es
.  

• 
 El

ec
ted

 m
em

be
rs 
are

 en
ga
gin

g m
ore

 ef
fec

tiv
ely

 w
ith
 se

rvi
ce
 us

ers
 an

d N
HS

 tru
sts

 ac
ros

s t
he
 bo

rou
gh
. 

• 
To

we
r H

am
let
s h

as
 a 
str
on
g p

lat
for

m 
on
 w
hic

h t
o b

uil
d, 
pa
rtic

ula
rly
 gi
ve
n t
he
 en

thu
sia

sm
 an

d w
illin

gn
es
s o

f th
e T

rus
ts 
to 
en
ga
ge
.  

 
  

Page 24



  Ho
we

ve
r, t

he
re 

are
 ar

ea
s w

he
re 

im
pro

ve
me

nts
 ca

n b
e m

ad
e; 
the

 re
po
rt h

igh
lig
hte

d s
om

e i
ss
ue
s t
ha
t h
av
e i
nh
ibi
ted

 th
e e

ffe
cti
ve
 de

live
ry 

of 
a c

oh
ere

nt 
an
d p

rop
ort

ion
ate

 pr
og
ram

me
 of
 he

alt
h s

cru
tin
y i
n T

ow
er 

Ha
ml
ets

:  
 

• 
Th

e s
he
er 

sc
ale

 of
 he

alt
h p

rob
lem

s a
nd
 in
eq
ua
litie

s i
n T

ow
er 

Ha
ml
ets

 po
se
s p

rob
lem

s f
or 

the
 H
SP

 in
 co

ns
tru

cti
ng
 an

d p
rio
riti
sin

g 
its
 ag

en
da
. 

• 
Th

e H
SP

 is
 in
clin

ed
 to
wa

rds
 em

plo
yin

g a
 ‘b
roa

d a
nd
 sh

all
ow

’ a
s o

pp
os
ed
 to
 a 
‘na

rro
w 
an
d d

ee
p’ 
ap
pro

ac
h a

nd
 as

 a 
res

ult
 

rig
oro

us
 sc

rut
iny

 an
d h

old
ing

 to
 ac

co
un
t c
an
 su

ffe
r.  

• 
Th

e p
rac

tic
e o

f o
nly

 do
ing

 on
e r

ev
iew

 a 
ye
ar 

mi
gh
t b
e r

ec
on
sid

ere
d, 
sin

ce
 tw

o m
ore

 fo
cu
se
d r

ev
iew

s c
om

ple
ted

 in
 a 
sh
ort

er 
tim

es
ca
le 
mi
gh
t b
e o

f g
rea

ter
 va

lue
.  

• 
Th

ere
 ar

e i
mp

rov
em

en
ts 
tha

t th
e H

SP
 co

uld
 m
ak
e t
o p

lan
nin

g a
nd
 m
an
ag
ing

 its
 ag

en
da
 – 
the

re 
is 
a c

as
e f
or 

fol
low

ing
 a 
les

s i
s 

mo
re 

ap
pro

ac
h, 
to 
en
su
re 

mo
re 

ma
na
ge
ab
le 
ag
en
da
s l
ea
d t
o m

ore
 ro

bu
st 
sc
rut

iny
, w

hic
h c

ou
ld 
ha
ve
 m
ore

 im
pa
ct 
in 
ad
din

g 
va
lue

.  
• 

Th
ere

 ar
e f
urt

he
r im

pro
ve
me

nts
 to
 be

 co
ns
ide

red
 to
 m
ak
e H

SP
 m
ee
tin
gs
 m
ore

 ef
fec

tiv
e, 
i.e
. b
ein

g b
rie
fed

 ab
ou
t th

e k
ey
 is
su
es
, 

dra
win

g m
ore

 fu
lly 

on
 pa

tie
nt 
an
d s

erv
ice

 us
er 

ex
pe
rie
nc
es
, a
nd
 de

ve
lop

ing
 qu

es
tio
nin

g s
tra

teg
ies

 be
for

e t
he
 m
ee
tin
gs
 ta
ke
 

pla
ce
 w
ou
ld 
en
ab
le 
HS

P m
em

be
rs 
to 
off
er 

a m
ore

 ro
bu
st 
‘cr
itic

al 
ch
all
en
ge
’ to

 th
e p

rof
es
sio

na
ls.
  

• 
Fu

rth
er 

im
pro

ve
me

nts
 ne

ed
 to
 be

 m
ad
e t
o t
he
 pa

rtn
ers

hip
 w
ork

ing
 ap

pro
ac
h, 
for

 th
e n

ew
 H
SP

 pr
og
ram

me
 be

gin
nin

g i
n 2

01
0, 
it 

wil
l b
e i
mp

ort
an
t to

 dr
aw

 on
 pr

ev
iou

s e
xp
eri
en
ce
 to
 em

plo
y t
he
 m
os
t e
ffe
cti
ve
 w
ay
s o

f e
ng
ag
ing

 H
SP

 m
em

be
rs 
- in

clu
din

g t
he
 

Pa
ne
l’s 

co
-op

tee
s –

 an
d h

ea
lth
 pa

rtn
ers

 in
 its

 pl
an
nin

g, 
es
pe
cia

lly 
de
ve
lop

ing
 th
e H

SP
’s 
wo

rki
ng
 re

lat
ion

sh
ip 
wit

h T
HI
Nk

, to
 m
ak
e 

us
e o

f it
s g

ath
eri
ng
 of
 pa

tie
nt 
an
d p

ub
lic 

ex
pe
rie
nc
es
 of
 he

alt
h a

nd
 so

cia
l c
are

 se
rvi
ce
s. 
 

• 
Pa

rtic
ula

r a
tte
nti
on
 ne

ed
s t
o b

e d
ire
cte

d t
o t
he
 w
ay
 in
 w
hic

h M
em

be
rs’
 ro

le 
as
 co

mm
un
ity
 le
ad
ers

 in
 co

ns
tru

cti
ve
ly 
inf
orm

ing
 an

d 
sh
ap
ing

 pr
op
os
ed
 ch

an
ge
s t
o s

erv
ice

 pr
ov
isio

n m
igh

t b
e s

up
po
rte

d a
nd
 en

ha
nc
ed
.  

• 
Eff

ort
s t
o e

ng
ag
e p

ati
en
ts 
an
d r

es
ide

nts
 in
 sc

rut
iny

 re
vie

w 
sh
ou
ld 
co
nti
nu
e –

 a 
cle

are
r u

nd
ers

tan
din

g a
bo
ut 
are

as
 of
 re

sp
on
sib

ility
 

an
d o

pe
rat

ion
 be

tw
ee
n t
he
 H
SP

 an
d T

HI
Nk

 co
uld

 he
lp 
to 
rea

p t
he
 be

ne
fits

 of
 ef
fec

tiv
e j
oin

t w
ork

ing
 th
rou

gh
 co

-or
din

ati
on
 of
 

eff
ort

.  
 Th

e r
ec
om

me
nd
ati
on
s p

ut 
for

wa
rd 

to 
the

 he
alt
h s

cru
tin
y p

rog
ram

me
 in
 th
e e

va
lua

tio
n a

re 
off
ere

d t
o a

ss
ist
 M
em

be
rs 
an
d a

ll h
ea
lth
 

pa
rtn

ers
 to
 m
ak
e t
he
 jo
urn

ey
, a
s o

ne
 of
 th
e e

va
lua

tio
n c

on
trib

uto
rs 
pu
t it
, “f

rom
 go

od
 to
 gr

ea
t.” 

 Th
e a

cti
on
 pl
an
 is
 at
tac

he
d a

nd
 ou

tlin
es
 ou

r a
cti
on
s a

nd
 re

sp
on
se
s t
o t
he
 re

co
mm

en
da
tio
ns
 as

 w
ell
 as

 tra
ck
ing

 m
ile
sto

ne
s t
o i
nd
ica

te 
pro

gre
ss
.   
  

Page 25



3. 
AC

TIO
N 
PL

AN
  

    R
ec
om

me
nd

ati
on

 
Ac

tiv
itie

s /
 R
es
po

ns
e  
 

Pr
og

res
s 

Mi
les

ton
es
 

Le
ad

 
Of
fic

er 
 

 O
bje

cti
ve
 1:

 En
su
rin

g s
cru

tin
y i
nc

or
po

rat
es
 be

st 
pr
ac
tic

e i
n a

dd
res

sin
g h

ea
lth

 in
eq

ua
liti

es
 

 1.1
 En

su
re 

the
 im

pli
ca
tio
ns
 of
 th
e M

arm
ot 
are

 in
co
rpo

rat
ed
 in
to 

the
 w
ork

 pr
og
ram

me
.  

- 
Pr
od
uc
e s

um
ma

ry 
an
d a

cti
on
 po

int
s 

rel
ev
an
t to

 LB
TH

 fro
m 
Ma

rm
ot 
Re

vie
w.
  

 - 
Inc

lud
e i
n t
he
 in
du
cti
on
 pr

og
ram

me
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

    
    
    

 Ju
ne
 20

10
 

  Ind
uc
tio
n p

rog
ram

me
  

de
live

red
 Ju

ne
 20

10
 

 

KM
 

  KM
  

1.2
 Be

nc
hm

ark
 th
e H

SP
s w

ork
 an

d t
ha
t o
f T

ow
er 

Ha
ml
ets

 
ag
ain

st 
tho

se
 au

tho
riti
es
 w
hic

h h
av
e b

ee
n a

wa
rde

d b
ea
co
n 

sta
tus

 fo
r re

du
cin

g h
ea
lth
 in
eq
ua
litie

s. 
 

- 
Be

nc
hm

ark
 ag

ain
st 
oth

er 
loc

al 
au
tho

riti
es
, 

the
 G
LA

 an
d t
hir
d s

ec
tor

 to
 ex

plo
re 

be
st 

pra
cti
ce
 ex

am
ple

s i
n h

ea
lth
 sc

rut
iny

  
On

 – 
go
ing

  
KM

 

Ob
jec

tiv
e 2

: Im
pr
ov
ing

 th
e a

pp
ro
ac
h t

o p
ro
gr
am

mi
ng

 he
alt

h s
cru

tin
y a

nd
 ca

rry
ing

 ou
t r
ev
iew

s  
 2.1

 Tr
y n

ew
 w
ay
s o

f c
arr

yin
g o

ut 
an
d g

ath
eri
ng
 ev

ide
nc
e f
or 

sc
rut

iny
 re

vie
ws

 to
 he

lp 
ke
ep
 th
e a

pp
roa

ch
 fre

sh
, in

no
va
tiv
e 

an
d s

ec
ure

ly 
ev
ide

nc
e b

as
ed
.  

- 
Th

e s
tar

t o
f e
ac
h r

ev
iew

 to
 in
clu

de
 a 

dis
cu
ss
ion

 po
int
 ex

plo
rin
g m

ore
 

inn
ov
ati
ve
 w
ay
s o

f g
ath

eri
ng
 ev

ide
nc
e, 

thi
s w

ill b
e a

dd
ed
 to
 th
e H

SP
 pr

oto
co
l to

 
en
su
re 

en
ga
ge
me

nt 
of 
me

mb
ers

.  
 

Se
pte

mb
er 

20
10
 

   

KM
 

2.2
 C
on
sid

er 
tak

ing
 a 
cro

ss
-se

cto
ral
, ‘T

ota
l P

lac
e’ 
ap
pro

ac
h t
o 

the
 ov

era
ll f
ram

ing
 of
 th
e n

ew
 he

alt
h s

cru
tin
y p

rog
ram

me
 fo
r 

20
10
-14

. E
ns
uri
ng
 th
at 
all
 he

alt
h p

art
ne
rs,
 th
e C

ou
nc
il a

nd
 th
e 

vo
lun

tar
y a

nd
 co

mm
un
ity
 se

cto
r in

 LB
TH

 ar
e a

ble
 to
 pl
ay
 th
eir
 

pa
rt i
n a

dd
res

sin
g k

ey
 he

alt
h i
ss
ue
s. 
 

  

- 
All
 he

alt
h p

art
ne
rs 
an
d k

ey
 st
ak
eh
old

ers
 

to 
be
 in
clu

de
d i
n t
he
 se

ttin
g u

p o
f th

e 
wo

rk 
pro

gra
mm

e f
or 

20
10
-14

 th
rou

gh
 a 

we
ll d

ev
elo

pe
d a

nd
 th
oro

ug
h i
nd
uc
tio
n 

pro
gra

mm
e. 
 

Inv
ite
 co

mm
en
ts 

fro
m 
pa
rtn

ers
 M
ay
 

20
10
.  

   

KM
  

2.3
 R
ev
iew

 th
e p

rac
tic
e o

f d
oin

g o
nly

 on
e H

SP
 sc

rut
iny

 re
vie

w 
a 

ye
ar,

 to
 se

e i
f tw

o m
ore

 fo
cu
se
d r

ev
iew

s c
om

ple
ted

 in
 sh

ort
er 

tim
es
ca
le,
 m
igh

t b
e o

f g
rea

ter
 va

lue
.  

- 
Pr
es
en
t o
nly

 on
e d

eta
ile
d r

ev
iew

 ea
ch
 

ye
ar 

to 
ret

ain
 fo
cu
s. 
 

- 
Re

vie
ws

 to
 be

 co
mp

let
ed
 by

 Ja
nu
ary

 to
 

On
-go

ing
  

  
KM

 

Page 26



  R
ec
om

me
nd

ati
on

 
Ac

tiv
itie

s /
 R
es
po

ns
e  
 

Pr
og

res
s 

Mi
les

ton
es
 

Le
ad

 
Of
fic

er 
 

   
en
ab
le 
sh
ort

er 
rev

iew
s o

r c
ha
lle
ng
e 

se
ss
ion

s t
o t
ak
e p

lac
e f
rom

 Ja
nu
ary

 to
 

the
 en

d o
f th

e m
un
icip

al 
ye
ar.

  
 

2.4
 C
on
sid

er 
ma

kin
g i
mp

rov
em

en
ts 
in 
the

 qu
ali
ty 
of 
the

 
rec

om
me

nd
ati
on
s t
ha
t th

e H
SP

 pr
od
uc
es
 in
 its

 w
ork

, to
 en

ab
le 

cle
are

r m
ea
su
res

 of
 su

cc
es
s t
o b

e d
raw

n f
rom

 th
e 

rec
om

me
nd
ati
on
s a

nd
 fa
cili
tat
e m

ore
 ef
fec

tiv
e m

on
ito
rin
g a

nd
 

ho
ldi
ng
 to
 ac

co
un
t o
f C

ab
ine

t, C
ou
nc
il O

ffic
ers

 an
d h

ea
lth
 

pa
rtn

ers
 

- 
En

su
re 

me
mb

ers
 ha

ve
 ac

ce
ss
 to
 ex

pe
rts
 

in 
the

 fie
ld 
of 
ch
os
en
 re

vie
w.
 

- 
Su

pp
ort

 m
em

be
rs 
in 
de
ve
lop

ing
 SM

AR
T 

rec
om

me
nd
ati
on
s b

y l
iai
sin

g w
ith
 ot
he
r 

dir
ec
tor

ate
s a

nd
 se

rvi
ce
 ar

ea
s. 
  

    

On
-go

ing
 pr

oc
es
s  

KM
  

 AH
/KM

 

2.4
 Ex

plo
re 

ho
ldi
ng
 ag

en
da
 pl
an
nin

g c
on
ve
rsa

tio
ns
 w
ith
 he

alt
h 

pa
rtn

ers
 at
 a 
hig

he
r le

ve
l to

 try
 to
 en

su
re 

tha
t a
ge
nd
as
 ca

n d
o 

jus
tic
e t
o t
he
 ‘b
ig 
iss

ue
s’ 
in 
he
alt
h 

- 
Ne

w 
HS

P p
rot

oc
ols

 w
ill a

llo
w 
me

eti
ng
s t
o 

be
 m
ore

 fo
cu
se
d. 
 

- 
Ex
plo

re 
rec

om
me

nd
ati
on
 2.
4 d

uri
ng
 th
e 

ind
uc
tio
n p

roc
es
s  

 

On
-go

ing
 

 Ju
ne
/Ju

ly 
20
10
 

KM
  

Ob
jec

tiv
e 3

: Im
pr
ov
ing

 th
e p

art
ne

rsh
ip 

ap
pr
oa
ch

 to
 he

alt
h s

cru
tin

y 
 3.1

 Ex
plo

re 
fol
low

ing
 th
e ‘
les

s i
s m

ore
’ a
pp
roa

ch
 to
 ag

en
da
 

pla
nn
ing

 in
 or

de
r to

 ad
d m

ore
 va

lue
 by

 gi
vin

g f
ew

er 
bu
t b
ett
er 

res
ou
rce

d w
ork

 ite
ms

 m
ore

 ro
bu
st 
sc
rut

iny
 

        

- 
Iss

ue
s o

n t
he
 ag

en
da
 an

d H
SP

 m
ee
tin
gs
 

to 
be
 ad

dre
ss
ed
 in
 a 
ne
w 
pro

toc
ol,
 w
hic

h 
wil
l in

clu
de
 th
e f
oll
ow

ing
 gu

ida
nc
e: 

- 
Th

e a
ge
nd
a t
o h

av
e n

o m
ore

 th
an
 5 
ite
ms

 
(no

t in
clu

din
g A

OB
).  

- 
Fu

ll r
ep
ort

s n
ot 
to 
be
 co

ve
red

 at
 H
SP

 
(on

ly 
su
mm

ary
 pr

es
en
tat
ion

s) 
- 

Pr
es
en
tat
ion

s t
o b

e 1
2 s

lid
es
 or

 le
ss
  

- 
Ag

en
da
 ite

ms
 to
 be

 gi
ve
n m

ax
im
um

 of
 30

 
mi
nu
tes

 ea
ch
.  

Pr
oto

co
ls 
to 
be
 

dis
cu
ss
ed
 du

rin
g t
he
 

ind
uc
tio
n p

roc
es
s 

an
d a

gre
ed
 Ju

ly 
20
10
 

KM
  

 3.2
 Ex

plo
re 

us
ing

 th
e m

os
t a
pp
rop

ria
te 
me

tho
d f
or 

co
ns
ide

rin
g 

dif
fer

en
t s
cru

tin
y i
tem

s, 
in 
ord

er 
to 
us
e t
he
 H
SP

’s 
tim

e a
nd
 

res
ou
rce

s m
ore

 ef
fec

tiv
ely

. 

 
- 

Ne
w 
pro

toc
ol 
to 
inc

lud
e f
oll
ow

ing
 

su
gg
es
tio
ns
:   

- 
Pr
e m

ee
tin
gs
 be

for
e H

SP
 (d

isc
ret

ion
 of
 

 Pr
oto

co
l to

 be
 

ag
ree

d J
un
e/J

uly
 

20
10
 

 KM
  

Page 27



  R
ec
om

me
nd

ati
on

 
Ac

tiv
itie

s /
 R
es
po

ns
e  
 

Pr
og

res
s 

Mi
les

ton
es
 

Le
ad

 
Of
fic

er 
 

ind
ivid

ua
l c
om

mi
tte
e a

nd
 C
ha
ir) 

 
- 

Se
pa
rat

e s
es
sio

ns
 fo
r k
ey
 m
em

be
rs 
on
 

em
erg

ing
 is
su
es
.  

- 
Of
fic
er 

co
mm

itm
en
t fo

r p
re-

pla
nn
ing

 
me

eti
ng
 2-

3 d
ay
s b

efo
re 
me

eti
ng
.  

- 
De

ve
lop

 th
e u

se
 of
 se

rvi
ce
 vi
sit
s a

s a
 w
ay
 

of 
so
lvin

g e
me

rgi
ng
 is
su
es
.  

- 
Ind

ivid
ua
l p
an
el 
me

mb
ers

 to
 be

 
res

po
ns
ibl
e f
or 

dif
fer

en
t p
iec

es
 of
 w
ork

.  
 

  On
-go

ing
  

3.3
 En

su
re 

the
 in
du
cti
on
 pr

og
ram

me
 fo
r n

ew
 H
SP

 m
em

be
rs 

(in
clu

din
g P

an
el’
s c

o-o
pte

es
) in

 20
10
/11

 dr
aw

s o
n e

xp
eri
en
ce
 

of 
pre

vio
us
 in
du
cti
on
s t
o e

mp
loy

 th
e m

os
t c
os
t e
ffe
cti
ve
 w
ay
s o

f 
en
ga
gin

g m
em

be
rs 
an
d e

na
bli
ng
 th
em

 to
 a)

 ac
qu
ire
 a 
cle

ar 
pic

tur
e o

f c
urr

en
t h
ea
lth
 is
su
es
 an

d s
tra

teg
ies

; a
nd
 b)

 st
art
 to
 

de
ve
lop

 ef
fec

tiv
e w

ork
ing

 re
lat
ion

sh
ips

 w
ith
 ke

y h
ea
lth
 pa

rtn
er 

co
nta

cts
 

- 
De

ve
lop

 a 
co
mp

reh
en
siv

e i
nd
uc
tio
n 

pro
gra

mm
e, 
dra

win
g o

n p
rev

iou
s 

ex
pe
rie
nc
e s

ett
ing

 ou
t c
lea

rly
 th
e r

ole
s o

f 
me

mb
ers

 an
d t
he
 be

ne
fits

 of
 jo
int
 

wo
rki
ng
. 

- 
Su

pp
ort

 th
e d

ev
elo

pm
en
t o
f th

e H
ea
lth
 

Sc
rut

iny
 Le

ad
 th
rou

gh
 be

tte
r e

ng
ag
em

en
t 

wit
h t
he
 H
ea
lth
y P

art
ne
rsh

ip 
De

live
ry 

Gr
ou
p. 
Op

en
 in
vit
es
 to
 bo

th 
Ch

air
s t
o a

ll 
me

eti
ng
s. 
  

Ind
uc
tio
n p

lan
 

de
live

red
 en

d o
f 

Ma
y/ 
be
gin

nin
g o

f 
Ju
ne
.  

  Ju
ne
 20

10
, o
n-g

oin
g 

  

 KM
  

   KM
 

3.4
 En

su
re 

the
 in
du
cti
on
 pr

oc
es
s f
or 

ne
w 
co
un
cill
ors

 in
clu

de
s 

dis
cu
ss
ion

s w
ith
 To

we
r H

am
let
s L

oc
al 
Inv

olv
em

en
t N

etw
ork

 
(TH

IN
k) 
an
d c

on
sid

er 
wa

ys
 to
 sh

are
 in
for

ma
tio
n c

oll
ec
ted

 by
 

TH
IN
k p

ati
en
ts 
an
d t
he
 pu

bli
c. 
 

- 
Att

en
da
nc
e a

t th
e T

HI
Nk

 st
ee
rin
g g

rou
p 

se
ss
ion

s t
o i
mp

rov
e p

art
ne
rsh

ip 
wo

rki
ng
. 

- 
TH

IN
k t
o b

e i
nv
olv

ed
 in
 th
e i
nd
uc
tio
n 

pro
gra

mm
e. 
 

- 
De

ve
lop

 a 
pro

toc
ol 
be
tw
ee
n t
he
 H
SP

 an
d 

TH
IN
k. 
 

Fir
st 
me

eti
ng
 M
ay
 

20
10
 

 Ju
ne
 20

10
  

 Se
pte

mb
er 

20
10
  

KM
 

  KM
 

 KM
  

3.5
 St

ren
gth

en
 th
e r

ela
tio
ns
hip

 be
tw
ee
n h

ea
lth
 pa

rtn
ers

 an
d 

he
alt
h s

cru
tin
y a

nd
 co

nti
nu
e t
o s

ee
k w

ay
s t
o s

tre
ng
the

n t
he
 

rel
ati
on
sh
ip 
be
tw
ee
n O

ve
rvi
ew

 an
d S

cru
tin
y a

nd
 th
e T

ow
er 

Ha
ml
ets

 Pa
rtn

ers
hip

 to
 he

lp 
de
live

r th
e p

rio
riti
es
 of
 th
e 

Co
mm

un
ity
 Pl

an
.  

  

- 
En

su
re 

HS
P w

ork
 pr

og
ram

me
 

inc
orp

ora
ted

 ke
y a

rea
s i
de
nti
fie
d b

y t
he
 

Co
mm

un
ity
 Pl

an
.  

- 
Ex
plo

re 
the

 po
ss
ibi
lity

 of
 H
SP

 w
ork

ing
 

wit
h o

the
r s
ec
tor

s i
n t
he
 bo

rou
gh
, i.
e. 

So
cia

l A
cti
on
 fo
r H

ea
lth
, M

ed
ica

l C
ou
nc
il, 

an
d H

ea
lth
 Tr

ain
ers

 et
c. 
  

On
-go

ing
 pr

oc
es
s  

  Ju
ne
/Ju

ly 
20
10
  

KM
 

  KM
/AH

  

Page 28



  R
ec
om

me
nd

ati
on

 
Ac

tiv
itie

s /
 R
es
po

ns
e  
 

Pr
og

res
s 

Mi
les

ton
es
 

Le
ad

 
Of
fic

er 
 

Ob
jec

tiv
e 4

: M
ain

str
ea
mi

ng
 he

alt
h i

ne
qu

ali
tie
s a

nd
 he

alt
h s

cru
tin

y w
or
k 

 4.1
 R
ev
iew

 ho
w 
the

 H
SP

 co
uld

 do
 m
ore

 to
 de

ve
lop

 an
d u

se
 its

 
rel
ati
on
sh
ip 
wit

h t
he
 Le

ad
 M
em

be
r fo

r H
ea
lth
 an

d W
ell
be
ing

 , 
as
 a 
wa

y o
f fi
rm

ing
 up

 th
e s

tro
ng
 le
ad
ers

hip
 an

d v
isio

n n
ee
de
d 

as
 on

e o
f th

e ‘
str
ate

gic
 le
ve
rs’
 un

de
rpi
nn
ing

 th
e s

uc
ce
ss
ful
 

tac
klin

g o
f h
ea
lth
 in
eq
ua
litie

s. 

   -
    
 En

su
re 

sta
nd
ard

 in
vit
ati
on
 to
 H
SP

  
    
    
 fo
r   

AH
W
B a

nd
 C
SF

. 
 - 

Int
rod

uc
e t
wo

 in
for

ma
l m

ee
tin
gs
 an

nu
all
y 

be
tw
ee
n s

cru
tin
y l
ea
d a

nd
 ca

bin
et 

me
mb

er 
wit

h t
he
 ai
m 
of 
mo

re 
sc
rut

iny
 

tak
ing

 pl
ac
e m

em
be
r to

 m
em

be
r.  

 
    

On
-go

ing
  

  Ju
ne
/Ju

ly 
 

KM
 

  KM
/AH

  

4.2
 Pr

om
ote

 co
ns
ide

rat
ion

 of
 th
e h

ea
lth
 im

pa
cts

 of
 st
rat

eg
ies

, 
po
lici
es
 an

d s
erv

ice
s b

y a
ll c

ou
nc
il d

ire
cto

rat
es
, a
s a

 m
eth

od
 of
 

ma
ins

tre
am

ing
 he

alt
h i
ne
qu
ali
tie
s w

ork
. 

    
 -  

   R
eg
ula

r c
om

mu
nic

ati
on
 w
ith
 To

we
r   

    
    
    
Ha

ml
ets

 Pa
rtn

ers
hip

, A
HW

 an
d C

SF
  

    
    
    
to 
red

uc
e o

ve
rla
p a

nd
 pr

om
ote

 th
e  

    
    
    
wo

rk 
of 
all
 di
rec

tor
ate

s. 
 

 

On
-go

ing
  

KM
  

4.3
 R
eq
ue
st 
Ex
ec
uti
ve
 Le

ad
s t
o e

nc
ou
rag

e p
art

ne
rsh

ip 
wo

rki
ng
 

wit
h N

HS
 co

lle
ag
ue
s a

nd
 ot
he
rs 
wo

rki
ng
 in
 th
e h

ea
lth
 an

d 
so
cia

l c
are

 fie
ld 
no
t ju

st 
at 
the

 st
rat

eg
ic 
an
d m

os
t s
en
ior
 le
ve
ls 

bu
t a
lso

 lo
we

r d
ow

n t
he
 of
fic
er 

str
uc
tur

e. 
 

    
 -  

  T
he
 co

un
cil 

alr
ea
dy
 ha

s g
oo
d w

ork
ing

  
    
    
   r

ela
tio
ns
hip

s w
ith
 th
e N

HS
 th
rou

gh
ou
t 

    
    
   t
he
 bo

th 
org

an
isa

tio
ns
 de

mo
ns
tra

ted
 

    
    
   b

y a
 nu

mb
er 

of 
str
ate

gie
s f
or 

    
    
   i
mp

rov
em

en
t a
nd
 w
ell
-be

ing
, fo

r 
    
    
   e

xa
mp

le 
tob

ac
co
 ce

ss
ati
on
 an

d 
    
    
   h

ea
lth
y e

ati
ng
.  

    
    
    

On
 - g

oin
g  

KM
 

4.4
 Pr

om
ote

 th
e d

ev
elo

pm
en
t o
f a
 co

re 
gro

up
 of
 pu

bli
c h

ea
lth
 

ch
am

pio
ns
 in
 de

cis
ion

-m
ak
ing

 po
sit
ion

s a
cro

ss
 al
l fu

nc
tio
ns
, 

thr
ou
gh
 th
e u

se
 of
 a 
he
alt
h t
rai
nin

g c
ou
rse

 fo
r s
en
ior
/th
ird
 tie

r 
ma

na
ge
rs.
 

    
-   

   A
n e

lem
en
t o
f th

is 
alr
ea
dy
 ex

ist
s  

    
    
   w

ith
in 
Co

un
cil/

pa
rtn

er 
org

an
isa

tio
ns
 

    
    
    
an
d k

ey
 of
fic
ers

.  
N/
A  

  
KM

  

Page 29



  R
ec
om

me
nd

ati
on

 
Ac

tiv
itie

s /
 R
es
po

ns
e  
 

Pr
og

res
s 

Mi
les

ton
es
 

Le
ad

 
Of
fic

er 
 

4.5
 En

su
re 

tha
t a
 he

alt
h d

im
en
sio

n i
s i
nc
lud

ed
 in
 th
e O

ve
rvi
ew

 
an
d S

cru
tin
y C

om
mi
tte
e’s

 co
ns
ide

rat
ion

s o
f to

pic
s f
or 

sc
rut

iny
 

rev
iew

s a
nd
 th
at 
its
 Sc

rut
iny

 Le
ad
s a

re 
aw

are
 of
 w
ha
t is

 
av
ail
ab
le 
in 
ter

ms
 of
 ev

ide
nc
e s

ou
rce

s a
nd
 w
itn
es
se
s, 
fro

m 
ins

ide
 an

d o
uts

ide
 th
e C

ou
nc
il, 
to 
ma

ke
 re

vie
ws

 as
 so

un
dly

 
ba
se
d a

s p
os
sib

le 
in 
ter
ms

 of
 he

alt
h i
mp

ac
ts.
 

    
-   

  O
ve
rvi
ew

 an
d S

cru
tin
y a

lre
ad
y  

    
    
   e

xp
lor
es
 re

lev
an
t h
ea
lth
 is
su
es
  

    
    
   w

he
n l
oo
kin

g a
t re

vie
w 
top

ics
,  

    
    
   f
or 

ex
am

ple
 th
e C

ho
ice

 Ba
se
d  

    
    
   L

ett
ing

s r
ev
iew

 co
ns
ide

red
 m
ed
ica

l 
    
    
   i
ss
ue
s. 
  

    
    
    
  

On
-go

ing
  

KM
 

4.6
 En

su
re 

tha
t th

e r
ele

va
nt 
co
un
cil 

dir
ec
tor

ate
s, 
in 
pa
rtic

ula
r 

the
 Ad

ult
s’ 
He

alt
h a

nd
 W

ell
be
ing

 an
d C

hil
dre

n, 
Sc
ho
ols

 an
d 

Fa
mi
lie
s d

ire
cto

rat
es
, a
re 

as
 fu
lly 

en
ga
ge
d a

s p
os
sib

le 
in 
the

 
HS

P’s
 w
ork

 di
rec

tly
 an

d t
ha
t d
ire
cto

rat
es
 ar

e m
ad
e a

wa
re 

of 
the

 
cri
ter

ia 
wh

ich
 th
e H

SP
 us

es
 to
 as

se
ss
 w
he
the

r to
pic

s a
re 

su
ffic

ien
tly
 im

po
rta

nt 
to 
be
 in
clu

de
d i
n t
he
 w
ork

 pr
og
ram

me
.  

    
-   

   C
on
tin
ue
 w
ork

ing
 w
ith
 Po

licy
 O
ffic

er 
    
    
    
lin
k i
n A

HW
 an

d e
sta

bli
sh
 a 
lin
k w

ith
  

    
    
    
a P

O 
for

 C
SF

 (s
ee
 3.
5 a

nd
 4.
2) 

 
   -

    
    
Es
tab

lish
 bi
-m

on
thl
y m

ee
tin
gs
 be

for
e 

    
    
    
ea
ch
 H
SP

 w
ith
 th
e S

erv
ice

 H
ea
ds
  

    
    
    
an
d P

oli
cy
 O
ffic

ers
 to
 pi
ck
 up

 an
y 

    
    
    
pre

vio
us
 is
su
es
 an

d a
ge
nd
a i
tem

s 
    
    
    
co
mi
ng
 up

.  
   

Ju
ne
 20

10
 

  Ju
ly 
20
10
.  

KM
 

4.7
 En

su
re 

the
 ne

w 
20
10
-20

14
 he

alt
h s

cru
tin
y p

rog
ram

me
 is
 ‘ 

an
 in
for

me
d j
oin

t e
nte

rpr
ise

’ b
y h

old
ing

 ex
ten

siv
e o

pe
n 

dis
cu
ss
ion

s a
bo
ut 
its
 pr

ior
itie

s a
nd
 co

nte
nt,
 to
 pr

od
uc
e a

 
rea

list
ic 
bu
t c
ha
lle
ng
ing

 pr
og
ram

me
 an

d i
nc
rea

se
 th
e l
ike

lih
oo
d 

of 
pa
rtn

ers
’ b
uy
-in
 an

d c
o-o

pe
rat

ion
. 

    
    
    
 To

 or
ga
nis

e a
n ‘
op
en
 di
sc
us
sio

n’ 
  

    
    
    
 se

cti
on
 w
ith
in 
the

 in
du
cti
on
  

    
    
    
 pr

og
ram

me
. T

o e
ns
ure

 in
pu
t fr

om
 al
l 

    
    
    
  p
art

ne
rs,
 in
clu

din
g T

HI
Nk

 an
d 

    
    
    
 es

tab
lish

 op
en
 co

mm
un
ica

tio
n  

    
    
    
 th
rou

gh
ou
t th

e p
roc

es
s t
o e

ns
ure

 a 
    
    
    
 ro

bu
st 
wo

rk 
pro

gra
mm

e. 
 

  

 Ju
ne
/Ju

ly 
20
10
 

 On
-go

ing
 pr

oc
es
s  

 KM
 

   

4.8
 Ex

plo
re 

op
po
rtu

nit
ies

 to
 in
cre

as
e t
he
 H
SP

’s 
‘cr
itic

al 
ch
all
en
ge
’ fu

nc
tio
n t
hro

ug
h t
op
ic 
bri
efi
ng
s, 
ho
ldi
ng
 al
l-p
art

y p
re-

me
eti
ng
s t
o d

ev
elo

p q
ue
sti
on
ing

 st
rat

eg
ies

 in
 ad

va
nc
e a

nd
 

att
en
din

g a
 qu

es
tio
nin

g s
kill

s d
ev
elo

pm
en
t s
es
sio

n. 
    

- 
Ex
plo

re 
ex
ter

na
l tr
ain

ing
 se

ss
ion

s f
or 

me
mb

ers
 ar

ou
nd
 he

alt
h s

cru
tin
y i
nc
lud

ing
 

the
 de

ve
lop

me
nt 
of 
qu
es
tio
nin

g s
kill

s. 
 

- 
Th

oro
ug
h b

ut 
co
nc
ise

 br
ief
ing

s t
o b

e 
pro

du
ce
d t
hre

e d
ay
s b

efo
re 

HS
P t

o a
llo
w 

tim
e f
or 

Me
mb

er 
qu
eri
es
 an

d a
ny
 

qu
es
tio
ns
 pr

ior
 to
 th
e m

ee
tin
g. 
 

Ju
ne
/Ju

ly 
20
10
  

   On
-go

ing
 pr

oc
es
s  

KM
  

  KM
 

Page 30



  R
ec
om

me
nd

ati
on

 
Ac

tiv
itie

s /
 R
es
po

ns
e  
 

Pr
og

res
s 

Mi
les

ton
es
 

Le
ad

 
Of
fic

er 
 

Ob
jec

tiv
e 5

: D
ev
elo

pin
g t

he
 H
ea
lth

 Sc
ru
tin

y P
an

el’
s a

bil
itie

s a
nd

 M
em

be
rs’

 co
mm

un
ity

 le
ad
ers

hip
 ro

le 
 5.1

 C
on
sid

er 
co
-op

tin
g a

 re
pre

se
nta

tiv
e f
rom

 th
e E

as
t L
on
do
n 

NH
S F

ou
nd
ati
on
 Tr

us
t’s
 C
ou
nc
il t
o b

rin
g i
n p

art
icu

lar
 

ex
pe
rie
nc
es
 th
at 
mi
gh
t o
the

rw
ise

 be
 la
ck
ing

 on
 th
e H

SP
 pa

ne
l 

    
 -  

    
 C
on
tac

t E
as
t L
on
do
n N

HS
  

    
    
    
  F

ou
nd
ati
on
 Tr

us
t a
nd
 in
vit
e c

o- 
    
    
    
  O

pte
es
 o 
the

 in
du
cti
on
 pr

oc
es
s t
o 

    
    
    
 de

ve
lop

 th
eir
 ro

le 
as
 ad

vis
ors

 to
 th
e 

    
    
    
 H
SP

.  

Ju
ly 
20
10
 

KM
 

5.2
 Ex

plo
re 

ho
w 
to 
de
ve
lop

 a 
wid

er 
ap
pre

cia
tio
n o

f h
ow

 
Me

mb
ers

 ca
n u

se
 th
eir
 co

mm
un
ity
 le
ad
ers

hip
 ro

le 
an
d s

kill
s a

s 
pa
rt o

f th
e p

rob
lem

-so
lvin

g i
n h

ea
lth
 an

d s
oc
ial
 ca

re.
 

    
 -  

    
 En

su
re 

tha
t th

e i
nd
uc
tio
n p

roc
es
s 

    
    
    
  fo

r  t
he
 H
SP

 is
 de

ve
lop

ed
 w
ith
 th
e 

    
    
    
  k
ey
 fo
cu
s t
ha
t th

e m
em

be
r’s
 

    
    
    
 C
om

mu
nit
y L

ea
de
rsh

ip 
Ro

le 
is 

    
    
    
 ex

erc
ise

d i
n a

 pr
ob
lem

 so
lvin

g 
    
    
    
 ca

pa
cit
y t
o i
mp

rov
e s

erv
ice

s f
or 

    
    
    
 lo
ca
l re

sid
en
ts.
  

 On
-go

ing
  

 AH
/KM

  
 

5.3
 En

su
re 

tha
t th

e r
ec
om

me
nd
ati
on
s o

f th
e S

cru
tin
y R

ev
iew

 
W
ork

ing
 G
rou

p o
n S

tre
ng
the

nin
g L

oc
al 
Co

mm
un
ity
 Le

ad
ers

hip
 

are
 co

ns
ide

red
 in
 ta
nd
em

 w
ith
 th
is 
rep

ort
, s
o t
ha
t th

ere
 is
 a 

he
alt
h d

im
en
sio

n t
o t
his

 de
ve
lop

ing
 w
ork

 on
 co

mm
un
ity
 

lea
de
rsh

ip.
  

 

    
    
-   

 C
on
sid

er 
the

 St
ren

gth
en
ing

 Lo
ca
l   
   

    
    
    
 C
om

mu
nit
y L

ea
de
rsh

ip 
Re

vie
w 
in 

    
    
    
 th
e I
nd
uc
tio
n P

rog
ram

me
 an

d s
ha
re 

    
    
    
 w
ith
 M
em

be
rs 
 

 Ju
ne
/Ju

ly 
20
10
  

 KM
 

5.4
 En

su
re 

tha
t in

 th
e H

SP
’s 
fut
ure

 w
ork

 pr
og
ram

me
 ac

co
un
t is

 
tak

en
 of
 th
e s

tro
ng
 po

ss
ibi
lity

 th
e f
urt

he
r p

an
-Lo

nd
on
 an

d s
ub
-

reg
ion

al 
he
alt
h s

erv
ice

 ch
an
ge
s m

ay
 re
qu
ire
 a 
su
bs
tan

tia
l 

inv
es
tm
en
t o
f ti
me

 an
d e

ffo
rt p

art
icip

ati
ng
 in
 Jo

int
 H
ea
lth
 

Ov
erv

iew
 an

d S
cru

tin
y C

om
mi
tte
es
 

        

    
  - 

    
 At

ten
d I
nn
er 

No
rth

 Ea
st 
Lo
nd
on
  

    
    
    
 O
ffic

er 
Me

eti
ng
s, 
Su

b R
eg
ion

al 
an
d  

    
    
    
 Pa

n L
on
do
n e

ve
nts

 to
 id
en
tify

 an
y  

    
    
    
 is
su
es
 at
 an

 ea
rly
 st
ag
e. 

- 
Re

po
rt b

ac
k t
o m

em
be
rs 
on
 ab

ov
e i
ss
ue
s 

on
 a 
reg

ula
r b

as
is 
thr

ou
gh
 em

ail
 bu

lle
tin
s 

an
d H

SP
 m
ee
tin
gs
.  

  

On
-go

ing
 

  
KM

 

Page 31



  R
ec
om

me
nd

ati
on

 
Ac

tiv
itie

s /
 R
es
po

ns
e  
 

Pr
og

res
s 

Mi
les

ton
es
 

Le
ad

 
Of
fic

er 
 

Ob
jec

tiv
e 6

: L
ay
ing

 fo
un

da
tio

ns
 fo

r t
he
 ne

xt 
fou

r y
ea
r h

ea
lth

 sc
ru
tin

y p
ro
gr
am

me
  

 6.1
 C
on
tin
ue
 ef
for

ts 
to 
en
ga
ge
 pa

tie
nts

 an
d r

es
ide

nts
 in
 sc

rut
iny

 
rev

iew
s, 
wh

ile
 co

ns
ide

rin
g o

the
r m

ea
ns
 of
 pu

bli
c e

ng
ag
em

en
t, 

su
ch
 as

 co
-op

tio
ns
, h
old

ing
 so

me
 H
SP

 m
ee
tin
gs
 in
 m
ore

 
ge
og
rap

hic
all
y a

cc
es
sib

le 
loc

ati
on
s, 
inc

rea
sin

g d
ial
og
ue
 w
ith
 

TH
IN
ks
 m
em

be
rsh

ip 
an
d i
nc
rea

sin
g t
he
 pu

bli
cit
y e

ffo
rt f

or 
he
alt
h s

cru
tin
y. 
 

    
   -

    
 R
ec
om

me
nd
ati
on
 6.
1 t
o b

e 
    
    
    
 co

ns
ide

red
 as

 pa
rt o

f th
e i
nd
uc
tio
n 

    
    
    
 pr

oc
es
s. 
 

- 
Sc

rut
iny

 Po
licy

 O
ffic

er 
to 
be
 re

sp
on
sib

le 
for

 ad
dre

ss
ing

 in
no
va
tiv
e w

ay
s t
o e

ng
ag
e 

res
ide

nts
 th
rou

gh
 be

tte
r p

ub
lici
ty 
an
d t
he
 

org
an
isa

tio
n o

f a
 po

ss
ibl
e c

on
fer

en
ce
 w
ith
 

he
alt
h p

art
ne
rs 
an
d k

ey
 st
ak
eh
old

ers
. 

- 
Lia

ise
 w
ith
 TH

IN
k t
o e

xp
lor
e t
he
 

de
ve
lop

me
nt 
of 
the

 no
n-e

xe
cu
tiv
e 

sta
ke
ho
lde

r’s
 ro

le 
an
d n

on
-ex

ec
uti
ve
 

dir
ec
tor

’s 
rol
e a

t th
e N

HS
 Fo

un
da
tio
n 

Tru
st.
    

Ju
ne
/Ju

ly 
20
10
-05

-
04
 

 Se
pte

mb
er 

20
10
 

     Ju
ne
 20

10
  

KM
 

       KM
  

6.2
 R
ev
iew

 th
e r

ela
tio
ns
hip

 w
ith
 bo

th 
LA

Ps
 an

d T
HI
Nk

 to
 

de
ve
lop

 cl
ari
ty 
ab
ou
t re

sp
ec
tiv
e r

ole
s v

is-
à-v

is 
ho
ldi
ng
 he

alt
h 

an
d s

oc
ial
 ca

re 
se
rvi
ce
s t
o a

cc
ou
nt,
 an

d t
o r

ea
p t
he
 be

ne
fits

 of
 

eff
ec
tiv
e l
iai
so
n a

nd
 jo
int
 w
ork

ing
. 

    
 -  

    
A k

ey
 re

co
mm

en
da
tio
n i
n t
he
 re

ce
nt 
 

    
    
    
Sc
rut

iny
 R
ev
iew

 G
rou

p’s
 re

po
rt o

n  
 

    
    
    
Str

en
gth

en
ing

  C
om

mu
nit
y  

    
    
    
Le
ad
ers

hip
 is
 to
 st
ren

gth
en
 lo
ca
l 

    
    
    
are

a p
art

ne
rsh

ips
 an

d t
he
 co

mm
un
ity
 

    
    
    
lea

de
rsh

ip 
rol
e a

s  
we

ll a
s t
he
 lin

k  
    
    
    
be
tw
ee
n O

ve
rvi
ew

 an
d 

    
    
    
Sc
rut

iny
 w
ith
 th
e L

AP
S. 

 
    
  - 

    
W
he
re 

the
 H
SP

 is
 lo
ok
ing

 at
 a 
 

    
    
    
sp
ec
ific

 ar
ea
 th
e L

AP
 ch

air
 w
ill b

e 
    
    
    
inv

ite
d 

    
    
    
to 
HS

P. 
  

    
    
    
 

       Ad
d t
o H

SP
 pr

oto
co
l  

Ju
ne
/Ju

ly 
20
10
 

 (O
n –

 go
ing

)  

KM
 

6.3
 C
on
sid

er 
inc

rea
sin

g t
he
 sc

rut
iny

 st
aff
ing

 re
so
urc

es
 so

 th
at 

the
re 

is 
a d

ed
ica

ted
 he

alt
h s

cru
tin
y o

ffic
er,

 as
 is
 co

mm
on
 in
 a 

nu
mb

er 
of 
oth

er 
au
tho

riti
es
 of
 co

mp
ara

ble
 si
ze
 to
 To

we
r 

Ha
ml
ets

, to
 en

ab
le 
the

 po
st 
to 
as
su
me

 a 
mo

re 
str
ate

gic
 ro

le 
aro

un
d w

ork
loa

d p
lan

nin
g, 
pri
ori
tis
ati
on
, a
na
lys

is 
of 
inf
orm

ati
on
, 

    
 -  

   T
o b

e c
on
sid

ere
d b

y t
he
 Sc

rut
iny

 
    
    
   S

erv
ice

 H
ea
d. 

   

  
 HA

 

Page 32



  R
ec
om

me
nd

ati
on

 
Ac

tiv
itie

s /
 R
es
po

ns
e  
 

Pr
og

res
s 

Mi
les

ton
es
 

Le
ad

 
Of
fic

er 
 

co
mm

iss
ion

ing
 of
 ad

dit
ion

al 
res

ea
rch

 an
d p

rov
idi
ng
 su

pp
ort

 fo
r 

HS
P m

em
be
rs.
  

   
6.4

 Ex
plo

re 
ho
w 
to 
ac
hie

ve
 th
e n

ec
es
sa
ry 
hig

h d
eg
ree

 of
 

co
nti
nu
ity
 in
 th
e m

em
be
rsh

ip 
of 
the

 H
SP

 ov
er 

the
 lif
e o

f th
e n

ex
t 

fou
r y
ea
r p

rog
ram

me
 an

d h
ow

 to
 fa
cili
tat
e H

SP
 m
em

be
rs’
 in
pu
t 

an
d e

ng
ag
em

en
t w

ith
 th
e w

ork
 fo
r m

ax
im
um

 ef
fec

tiv
en
es
s. 
 

    
-   

  S
cru

tin
y T

ea
m 
to 
lia
ise

 w
ith
 M
em

be
rs 

    
    
   a

nd
 ad

vis
ors

 to
 ex

plo
re 

the
 

    
    
   n

om
ina

tio
ns
  

    
    
   p

roc
es
s f
or 

HS
P. 

 

 On
-go

ing
  

 AH
 

       
 

  

Page 33



Page 34

This page is intentionally left blank



 
Committee 
 
Health Scrutiny Panel 
 

Date 
 
27 July 2010 

Classification 
 
Unrestricted 
 

Report 
No. 
 
 

Agenda Item 
No. 
4  
 

Report of:  
 
Originating Officer(s):  
Katie McDonald 
Scrutiny Policy Officer 
 

Title:  
 
Health Scrutiny Panel Work Programme 
2010/11 – 2011-2012  
 
 
Ward(s) affected: All           
 

 
 
1. Summary 
 
1.1 This report outlines the draft two year work programme for the Health Scrutiny Panel (HSP) for 

municipal years 2010/2011 and 2011-2012 
1.2 The report sets out the process used to develop the Health Scrutiny Work Programme and 

suggests a number of ways in which the Panel may wish to approach the workload. 
1.3 Appendix 1 sets out the schedule for items across the Panel Meetings for 2010/2011 
 
 
2.  Recommendations 
 
The Health Scrutiny Panel is asked to: 
 
2.1 Consider and comment on the draft work programme items and schedule attached at 

Appendix 1 and 2  
2.2 Agree options for managing the work programme 
2.3 Agree to review the work programme every quarter 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT, 2000 (SECTION 97) 
LIST OF “BACKGROUND PAPERS” USED IN THE PREPARATION OF THIS REPORT 
Background paper 
 
N/A  

Name and telephone number of and address where open to 
inspection 
 
Katie McDonald  
020 7364 4548 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 5.4

Page 35



 
3.    Background 
 
3.1  The scrutiny of health is an important part of the Council’s commitment to place patients and the  
        public at the centre of health services in the borough. It is a fundamental way by which  
        democratically elected Councillors may voice the views of their constituents and require local 
        NHS bodies to listen and respond. In this way, the Council can assist to reduce health  
         inequalities and promote and support health improvement. 

 
        The Health Scrutiny Panel’s remit covers local health service provision and social care services 
        for adults and older people. A major role for the Panel is being a statutory consultee for all  
        substantial service change and development of local health services. The statutory duty and 
        powers given to local authorities for Health Scrutiny were established through the Health and  
        Social Care Act 2001.  Local authorities with Social Services responsibilities are required to have  
        an Overview and Scrutiny function that can respond to consultation by NHS bodies on significant  
        changes and developments in health services and take up the power of Overview and Scrutiny  
        on broader health and wellbeing issues. The Local Government and Public Involvement in   
        Health Act 2007 strengthened these powers further; it provides powers for Overview and 
        Scrutiny Committees to review and scrutinise the performance of public service providers to  
        meet the LAA targets, as well as empowering councillors to raise issues with Overview and  
        Scrutiny Committees through a ‘councillor call for action’.  
 
 
3.2   The primary aims of health scrutiny is to:  

 
• identify whether health and health services reflect the views and aspirations of the local 

community  
• ensure all sections of the community have equal access to services  
• And have an equal chance of a successful outcome from services. 

 
3.3     In Tower Hamlets the Health Scrutiny Panel has been established as a sub-committee of the 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee. Its Terms of Reference are: 
 

� To review and scrutinise matters relating to the health and social care within the 
Council's area and make reports and recommendations in accordance with any 
regulations made 

� To respond to consultation exercises undertaken by an NHS body 
� To question appropriate officers of local NHS bodies in relation to the policies adopted 

and the provision of the services. 
 
3.4 During the induction process Members of the Health Scrutiny Panel met to set out 
          the strategic focus for the Panel for the two years 2010 – 2012. Instead of the previous four  
          year cycle the Panel will look to develop a two year cycle with a one year rolling programme. It  
          has been agreed that the Panel will work under the same overarching theme of the previous  
          cycle and the purpose for Health Scrutiny in Tower Hamlets should remain as tackling health  
          inequalities.    
 
3.5    The broad cross-cutting themes of the rolling work programme remain: 

 
• health promotion and prevention through work with health partners and other third 

sector organisations 
• developing better integration and partnership to improve joint service provision 
• Improving access to services as a key way of tackling health inequalities. 

 
  

 
 
 
 

Page 36



 
4       The work of the Health Scrutiny Panel in 2009/2010 

 
4.1     The Panel delivered an in depth review looking at Childhood Obesity.  A summary of the review 

is outlined below.   
 
Scrutiny Review: Reducing Childhood Obesity – Increasing the availability of healthy choices  

 
4.2 The review looked at reducing childhood obesity with a focus on promoting healthy eating by 

increasing the availability of and access to healthy food choices and reducing the availability of 
and access to foods that are high in fat, sugar and salt. 
 

4.3      The review had a number of key objectives.  
 

• To develop appropriate recommendations to ensure the issue around prevention of an 
over-concentration of fast food outlets can be operationalised.  

• To explore the possibility for offering healthy free school meals for all.  
• To support schools to maintain their commitment to providing food in a pleasant, sociable 

environment with promotion of healthy choices.  
• To examine the possibility of further investment into improving school dining facilities. 
• To continue to develop current initiatives particularly under the Healthy Borough 

programme such as business advice to encourage healthier food choices.  
 

4.4      The Health Scrutiny Panel were keen to ensure that their work added value to existing  
           work that had taken place in the borough on tackling obesity. The Panel considered  
           how the Council might directly address the problem with the proliferation of fast-food 
           outlets, particularly in the vicinity of schools, and the quality of the food they provide. The 
           Working Group examined the lettings policies of public sector landlords and Registered Social  

 Landlords with regards to fast food outlets to identify what action can be taken as well as the  
           possibility of Tower Hamlets offering healthy free school meals for all.  
 
4.5     Key Recommendations from the report were:  

 
• That the Children, Schools and Families Directorate find additional resources to provide 

free school meals for all pupils in Tower Hamlets.  
• That Children, Schools and Families Directorate work with schools to develop a 

staggered lunch hour, so that pupils are not queuing for long periods over lunch.  
• That Development and Renewal Directorate develop an evidence base to underpin 

emerging policy on managing fast food outlets in Tower Hamlets as outlined in the 
‘Healthy Borough Programme’ report with a view of developing a means to restrict the 
over-concentration of fast food outlets in the borough, particularly those outside of town 
centres and within close proximity to schools.  

• That a report be presented to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee detailing the 
success of the Healthy Borough Programme. This paper should form the basis for 
strengthening proposals for requesting further funding beyond March 2011.  

 
Impact: 
 

• Service responses to the recommendations are still being drafted 
 
4.6   Health for North East London Consultation – Joint  Overview Scrutiny Committee (JOSC)   
       
          Health for North East London (H4NEL) is the NHS programme review, run on behalf of  
          the north east London's Primary Care Trusts (PCT) and acute hospital trusts. The aim of  
          the health for north east London consultation was to significantly improve the health of  
          thousands of patients and ensure the NHS delivers the best possible care by taking  
          advantage of new medical developments and improving the way it delivers care to  
          patients by bringing some services closer to people’s homes and centralising others to  
          provide better specialist care. 

Page 37



 
 
         Two Members of the Health Scrutiny Panel and the Chair, Cllr Tim Archer were   
         nominated to represent the borough on the Inner North East London JOSC with 
         Members from the London Boroughs of Hackney, Newham and the City of London.  
         They considered and responded to the proposals set out in the PCT consultation 
         document, and examined whether the Health for North East London proposals would  
         deliver better healthcare for the people of North East London. The JOSC had the  
         opportunity to collect evidence from clinical specialists, the London Ambulance Service,  
         Transport for London and service users to reach its conclusions. The consultation has 
         now finished but the work is still on-going and it is likely that members of the HSP will be  
         asked to comment on the findings and final recommendations produced by H4NEL.   
 
4.7       Evaluation of the  Health Scrutiny Panel 4 year programme March 2010  
 

          As the Health Scrutiny Panel’s four-year work programme approached its end. It was  
          agreed in October 2009 that it would be beneficial for an external evaluation. The  
          evaluation was based on the Centre for Public Scrutiny’s principles of good scrutiny and  
          tested views from across the authority and its partners on the effectiveness of the four- 
          year programme. The bulk of the evaluation took place in January and early February  
          2010. The approach was based on a review of extensive documentation from the  
          Council and all health partners; a range of interviews with Members, council officers and health  
          partner’s personnel as well as an observation of the Health Scrutiny Panel meeting on 26th  
         January 2010.  
 
         It is an important piece of work identifying both strengths and weaknesses as well as providing  
          recommendations for improvements to the Panel as we look to the 2010/2011 programme. In  
          response to this report the Scrutiny Team have put together an Action Plan which will guide the  
          way the Health Scrutiny Panel conducts its work over the next two years.  
 

  The evaluation recognises that Tower Hamlets has built strong foundations for its health  
  scrutiny function but there are improvements that need to be made. Particularly in relation to  
  improving the partnership approach to health scrutiny and developing the Health Scrutiny  
  Panel’s abilities and Member’s community leadership role. The suggestions will assist Members  
  and all health partners to make the journey as one contributor in the report quotes “from good to  
  great.  

 
 
5. Health Scrutiny Panel Work Programme 2010/2011  
 
5.1 Health inequalities remain a key challenge for the borough. Tower Hamlets is the third most 

deprived borough in the country and there are areas of deprivation in every part of the 
borough. There is strong evidence that areas with deprivation have worse health and greater 
health inequalities. The life expectancy for a boy born in Bethnal Green North is 8.5 years less 
than that for a boy born in Millwall, in 2006, the probability of survival to age 75 for a man in  
Tower Hamlets was 54% compared to 66% nationally. Although life expectancy is increasing 
and death rates appear to be falling steadily year on year. There is little evidence of a 
reduction in the gap between  

 
5.2 The Borough’s Community Plan explains how the Council will improve the quality of life in 

Tower Hamlets. The aspiration of ‘One Tower Hamlets’ runs throughout the plan and a key 
component  is to reduce the inequalities and poverty that we see around us, strengthening  

            cohesion and making sure communities continue to live well together.The HSP will support  
            the Tower Hamlets Partnership to build ‘One Tower Hamlets’ by : 
 

� Focusing on reducing the health inequalities that exist within the borough and 
narrowing the gap between Tower Hamlets and the healthiest parts 

  of the country 
� Supporting people to lead healthier lifestyles 

Page 38



 
� Making sure that health services are accessible –including at a time and place that 

suits residents 
� Recognising the strong links between health and other areas such as employment, 

housing and the environment 
 
5.5 The process for preparing a long list of items for the Health Scrutiny Work Programme has been 

to draw on a number of sources.  The Health Scrutiny Panel has key business, policy and 
performance items that it must respond to for example Tower Hamlets NHS Commissioning 
Intentions, responding and the Healthcare for North East London review.  Members of the Panel 
have been invited to comment on a draft list of items which includes the above and to suggest 
further issues.  As in previous years the Panel want to make sure that patient, users and local 
people influence how services are designed; therefore the Tower Hamlets Involvement Network 
(THINk)  was also involved in agreeing items for the programme. The three NHS Trusts were 
 also requested to feedback on possible areas to evaluate and where Health Scrutiny could 
add value to existing programmes of work.   

 
5.6    This year the Health Scrutiny Panel will look to carry out two challenge sessions in  
 2010 with the possibility of a longer review later in the year.  
 
 
5.7   The challenge sessions agreed are:  
 

1)  Polysystems and Reconfiguration of Local Services – what this means for local residents? 
 

            This session will aim to: 
 

• scrutinise public engagement in the reconfiguration of health services in Tower 
Hamlets 

• provide residents with the correct information on how they will be affected by 
the reconfiguration of health services in the Borough. 

   
           It will assist in addressing the challenges outlined in the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment  
           around service delivery and access to health services. As well as addressing those issues  
           around variation in health outcomes, the low uptake of screen services and the need to  
           integrate services by engaging residents and providing necessary information. There has been 
           a large clinical focus on polysystems and reconfiguration of health services over the last year  
           but there is still work to be done to engage residents which this challenge session will focus  
           on.    
 
      2)  Cancer – The development of preventative services - early diagnosis and rapid referral 

 
This session will aim to:  
 

• To improve life expectancy in the borough. Tower Hamlets has amongst the 
highest prevalence of risk factors for cancer in London. 

• To improve resident understanding and knowledge around this issue 
 
            A challenge session would address the gaps identified by the 2008-09 report from Joint  
            Director of Public Health, Ian Basnett and Joint Strategic Needs Assessment 2009  
            surrounding the low uptake of screening services.  In 2005 life expectancy in Tower Hamlets  
            was 75.2 in males and 80.2 in females. This is 2.1 years shorter in males and 1.3 years  
            shorter in females compared to England and ranks Tower Hamlets in the bottom 20% of all 
            local authorities. There were 614 new cases of cancer in 2006. Tower Hamlets has higher  
            rates of diagnoses of lung, cervical, bowel and stomach cancers compared to London and  
            national figures. There is a consistent pattern of poorer survival which may be linked to later  
            diagnosis. Cancer is a major concern that Tower Hamlets continues to be significantly off  
            target. It is a hard trend to shift and this is scrutiny challenge session would go some way  
            to intensifying efforts to improve early detection rates in the Borough.  

Page 39



 
 
6         Other work of the Panel 
 
6.1 Over the next few years there are a number of policy developments and issues that will have  

an impact on health scrutiny and its work programme: 
 

• Care Quality Commission ( development of commissioner assessment)  
• Increasingly challenging financial climate. 
• Increasing integration (health and social care, NHS and local government, acute and 

community services – links to “Total Place”)  
• The Marmot Review (Opportunities for the Health Scrutiny Panel to consider the health 

issues outlined in its work).  
• The NHS White Paper (What this will mean for health care in Tower Hamlets) 
• Locally – Executive Mayor and Mayoral System 
• Further work with the Tower Hamlets Involvement Network (THINk) to increase 

resident participation and link its work with the HSP.  
 
6.2 The NHS is undergoing a period of unprecedented change and modernisation affecting the way 

health partners are developing and providing services to local people.  It would be helpful for 
the Panel to develop a deeper understanding of these changes to inform its role and work. 
These include: 

 
• The NHS White Paper (2010) – (including NHS Trusts gaining foundation trust status by 

2013) 
• Finance and funding of services including payment by results; 
• Commissioning; 
• Performance Management through Quality Accounts and the Care Quality Commission 

 
6.3    Outside of the main work of the Panel the two challenge sessions will be conducted with a    
         possibility of a longer review later in the year. Alongside a programme of briefings, seminars  
         and site visits to inform and develop understanding of the key health issues in the borough.  
         During the second year of the cycle, the Health Scrutiny Panel have proposed an in-depth  
         review looking at Mental Health services in the Borough.   
 
6.4    The proposed work programme for the next year is set out in further detail in Appendix 1. At the 

request of the Chair the meetings in January and March have been left clear to provide the 
Health Scrutiny Panel with a degree of flexibility given the current climate and major changes in 
health policy. Once the overall work programme is agreed, the scope and exact timing of issues 
will be developed in consultation with relevant NHS partners and services.  This will ensure that 
the work is focused and delivers its objectives.  A proposed work programme has also been 
included at Appendix 2 for 2011/2012. Members of the Health Scrutiny Panel will be invited to 
add to this plan throughout the year.  

 
6.5  The implementation of past scrutiny reviews and recommendations will continue to be 

monitored. In addition, other issues may be identified as the Panel develops its programme and 
links with both NHS and community organisations.  

 
7. Role of Health Scrutiny Panel Members 
 
7.1  To maximise the value of health scrutiny in improving services Members of the Panel can play 

various roles. These include: 
 

• The Community Leadership Role linking with community groups, residents and LAP 
meetings to consult and engage residents – in particular deeper level of engagement with 
the Partnership work under the Healthy Community, Community Plan Theme; 

• The active promotion of health scrutiny and gathering of information from residents and 
community groups to raise with the Panel and Health Partners; 

Page 40



 
• Undertaking an individual link role by liaising with health partners by visiting and meeting as 

appropriate and reporting back to the Panel. 
 

7.2      The changing role of community leaders with more emphasis on leadership of place  
rather than services highlights the potential for scrutiny in influencing and shaping the  
local area. With many services being jointly provided or commissioned scrutiny of  
partnership will be an area of growing interest for non-executive councillors looking to  
improve the overall quality of life for residents. 

 
7.3   Learning and development will also need to run alongside the rest of the work programme.   
             The Scrutiny Policy Team will be supporting Members to tailor this to their individual needs. 

 
8. Concurrent Report of the Assistant Chief Executive (Legal Services) 
 

8.1  By virtue of the Health and Social Care Act 2001, duties were added to Overview and Scrutiny  
             Committees for Health Scrutiny Panels to review and scrutinise matters relating to the health  
             service in the authority’s area and to make reports and recommendations on such matters in  
             accordance with the relevant regulations.  
    
9. Comments of the Chief Financial Officer 
    
9.1 This report describes the draft two year work programme for the Health Scrutiny Panel 

(HSP) for municipal years 2010/2011 and 2011-2012. The government have recently 
announced changes to the delivery of health services in London particular the future existence 
of Primary Care Trusts (PCTS) that are likely to impact on the scope and nature of the 
proposed work programme of the Health Scrutiny Panel over the next two years and its 
associated costs. 

 
9.2 There are no specific financial implications emanating from this report, and any 

additional costs that arise from the work programme of the Health Scrutiny Panel, must be 
contained within directorate revenue budgets. Also, if the Council agrees further action 
in response to this report’s recommendations then officers will be obliged to seek the 
appropriate financial approval before further financial commitments are made. 

 
10. One Tower Hamlets consideration 
 

10.1 Tackling inequalities and reducing poverty is central to the work of the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee and Health Scrutiny Panel and this is reflected in work around access to health 
services and work around health promotion and prevention.  Equal opportunities and diversity 
implications will be considered during each of the scrutiny reviews. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 41



 
 
Appendix 1 – Health Scrutiny Panel Meetings  
 
2010/11 
 
 Panel Date Reports / Topic Method 
June 
2010 
 

• Induction Programme 
• Update on THINk 
• Work Programme discussion  

Presentation Meeting &  
Verbal updates  

July 2010 
 
 

• The NHS White Paper  
• Six Lives Panel Project  
• 2010/2011 Draft Work Programme  
• Health Scrutiny Evaluation Report - Action 

Plan 
• Health4nel response to INEL JOSC  
 

Verbal Update  
Report and Presentation  
Draft Report  
Report 
 
Report and Verbal update  
  

October 2010  
• HSP Work Programme  
• Joint Reporting of Complaints – across all 

Three Trusts   
• Access to GP services – the Ocean Estate  
• THINk Work programme 
• East London NHS Foundation Annual Plan 

10/11 and Service Update  
 

 
Report  
Presentation  
 
Presentation/Briefing   
Report/presentation  
Report/presentation 

January 2011 
 
 

• NHS Tower Hamlets – Operating and 
Commissioning Priorities 

• Transformation of Adult Social Care and  
 the Personalisation Agenda  

  
•  Update on Review and Challenge Session  
•  Work  
 

 
 

Report/Presentation  
 
Briefing 
 
 
Report  
 
 
 

March 2011 
 
 

• Excellence in Quality Strategy Report and 
Presentation, Barts and the London NHS 
Trust 

• Operating Plan NHS Tower Hamlets 
• Update on Review and Challenge Session   

 
 

Report and Presentation  
 
 
Report and Presentation  
Briefing  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 42



 
 
 
Appendix 2 – Health Scrutiny Panel Meetings  
 
2011/12 
 
 Panel Date Reports / Topic Method 
June 
2011 
 

• Induction Programme 
• Update on THINk 
• Work Programme discussion  
• Mental Health Review  

Presentation Meeting &  
Verbal updates  

July 2011 
 
 

• 2011/2012 Draft Work Programme  
• Complaints Reporting on all three Trusts 
 

Verbal Update  
Report/presentations  
  

October 2011  
• HSP Work Programme  
• Joint reporting of complaints  
• East London NHS Foundation Annual Plan 

11/12 
 

 
Report  
Presentation  
Report/presentation  
 

January 2012 
 
 

• NHS Tower Hamlets – Operating and 
Commissioning Priorities 2011/12 

  
• Update on Review and Challenge Session 

Work  
 

 
 

Report/Presentation  
 
 
Report 
 
 
 

March 2012 
 
 

• Excellence in Quality Strategy Report and 
Presentation, Barts and the London NHS 
Trust 

• Operating Plan NHS Tower Hamlets 
• Update on Review and Challenge Session   

 
 

Report and Presentation  
 
 
Report and Presentation  
Briefing  

 
 
 
 

Page 43



Page 44

This page is intentionally left blank



Committee 
 
Health Scrutiny Panel 
 

Date 
 
27 July 2010 

Classification 
 
Unrestricted 
 

Report 
No. 
 
 

Agenda Item 
No. 
5  
 
 

Reports of:  
 
a) c) Health for North East London  
 
b) Mott MacDonald and Public Health 
Action Support Team (PHAST) 
 
 
 
Presenting Officer:  
 
Katie McDonald 
Scrutiny Policy Officer  
 
. 
  
 

Title:               
 
a) Health for North east London response 
to INEL JOSC recommendations 
 
b) Health for North East London 
     Integrated Impact Assessment  
 
c)  What will happen next?  
 
 
 
Ward(s) affected:  
 
All  

 
 
1. Summary 
 
The reports included are to provide the Health Scrutiny Panel with an update 
following a review of the proposals for the reconfiguration of acute services in 
North East London by the health scrutiny committees from Inner North East 
London Boroughs (London Borough of Tower Hamlets, Hackney, Newham 
and City of London) which was completed in April 2010. 
 
The first document is the response from Health for North East London 
(Programme Team) to the Inner North East London Joint Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee Report. 
 
Followed by the Independent Integrated Impact Assessment undertaken by 
Mott MacDonald and PHAST and a presentation from the H4NEL programme 
director, Helen Brown on the next stages of the consultation.  
 
2. Recommendations 

 
The Health Scrutiny Panel is asked to consider the reports and note for 
information.  
 
 
  
 
 
 

Agenda Item 5.5

Page 45



Page 46

This page is intentionally left blank



Health for north east London response to 
INEL JOSC recommendations 

Recommendation 1 – Children’s Services 

a. Assurance is given that there is capacity within the system to ensure the smooth
transfer of patients (children and adults) to designated specialist services for their 
patient catchment areas, for example, INEL residents to The Royal London Hospital 
and back to local hospital.

The Joint INEL and ONEL Joint Committees of Primary Care Trusts (JJCPCT) made
a commitment in November 2009 that no changes would be implemented until the
JJCPCT was absolutely assured that sufficient capacity is in place across the whole
of the healthcare system to safely and effectively manage the new service model.  In
order to assure that the capacity is available we are currently reviewing and updating 
the modelling that has been undertaken to forecast activity flows and required
additional capacity at specialist centres and will be happy to share this with the
Committee in due course. 

We are also currently considering the best organisational and commissioning
arrangements to support any new models of care for children’s services.  I can
assure you, on behalf of the JJCPCT that we will only make changes to current care 
pathways and models when we are confident that we have in place the appropriate
capacity and mechanisms within and across all organisations to manage the new
pathways effectively and deliver the intended benefits for children. As part of the
implementation planning phase of the programme we will be working with all
organisations to describe a set of clear standards for new paediatric care pathways 
and agree a clear set of standards against which the new model of care can be
measured.

b. That Specialist Centres and local trusts have robust Safeguarding governance
procedures in place for all patients (adults and children), ensuring that cross border
arrangements are in place.

c. Request clarity on procedures for social care responsibility for cross border 
patients using Specialist Centres, for example, the provision of office accommodation
for local authority social care staff for patients expected to use Specialist Centres
such as The Royal London.

d. That Specialist Centres are asked to confirm they have access to and resources to
provide accommodation facilities for families with children in their care. 

These issues will need to be considered as part of implementation planning, in
partnership with local authority colleagues, once decision-making has taken place.

Page 47



2Author GH/SDS Status Final  

Version Date 100514 Sensitivity Low 

Storage R:\TrustHQ\Health4NEL\03 Advisory & Decision 
Making\09  INEL JHOSC\INEL Report\H4NEL response 
to INEL JOSC\INEL response 100514v3 

2

As set out above a clear set of standards will be need to be defined and agreed to 
support the new model of care, we expect this to cover issues relating to partnership 
working, safeguarding and accommodation for parents.  One of the key messages 
from the consultation has been in relation to overnight accommodation for parents of 
children receiving care at specialist centres.  

e. Recommend proposal related to urgent non complex surgery on post pubescent 
‘children’ under the age of 16 is reviewed by Health for North East London 
Programme to explore giving surgeon’s discretion to make the decision to conduct 
the surgery if competent to do so but consistently across the NEL sector. 

This issue will be reviewed by the Children and Young people’s Clinical Working 
Group (CWG) and further recommendations will be brought the JJCPCT to consider.  

Recommendation 2 – Maternity and Newborn Services 

a. That a strategy be developed to demonstrate how large birthing units will be 
managed by Acute Trusts anticipated to have in excess of 6,000 births per year. 

b. That a strategy for each Trust be produced with details of how the vacancy rates 
for midwives will be reduced. 

The Clinical Working Group for Maternity and Newborn will be involved in supporting  
implementation planning, and will be involving key stakeholders in this work.  Based 
on work done at a London level we will be setting clear standards for maternity 
birthing services intended to ensure that services are as women-centred as possible.  
A key element of this will be a drive towards increased midwifery led care in all 
settings (home, free standing midwifery led care, co-located midwifery led care on 
hospital site).  We will involve local maternity services liaison committees and other 
stakeholders such as the National Childbirth Trust in this work.  

All NHS organisations have been working on action plans to improve maternity 
services since the Healthcare Commission review in 2008.  Significant additional 
investment has been made to support recruitment of additional midwives and 
increase medical staffing levels. These action plans, along with the implementation of 
the Department of Health’s Maternity Matters policy (2007), are monitored by NHS 
London.   The maternity clinical working group will oversee the development of a 
sector wide maternity workforce strategy, with each Trust developing local plans to 
support recruitment and retention of midwives.  

Page 48



3Author GH/SDS Status Final  

Version Date 100514 Sensitivity Low 

Storage R:\TrustHQ\Health4NEL\03 Advisory & Decision 
Making\09  INEL JHOSC\INEL Report\H4NEL response 
to INEL JOSC\INEL response 100514v3 

3

Recommendation 3 – Specialist Services 

a. Assurance is given that there is capacity within the system to ensure the smooth  
transfer of patients (children and adults) to designated specialist services for their 
patient catchment areas, for example, INEL residents to The Royal London Hospital 
and back to local hospital. 

As noted above no changes will be made until there is assurance that sufficient 
capacity is in place across the whole of the healthcare system to manage changes 
safely and effectively and the finance and activity modelling is being reviewed in 
order to provide this assurance.  It should be noted that there is no requirement for 
rehabilitation following vascular surgery. Patients admitted for surgery will complete 
their entire inpatient episode at the hospital where they undergo surgery and will then 
be discharged home.  The vascular network will be developing a detailed pathway 
model with key standards at each stage of the pathway.  This will be available to 
share with the Committee in due course.  

b. That Specialist Centres and local trusts have robust Safeguarding governance 
procedures in place for all patients (adults and children), ensuring that cross border 
arrangements are in place. 

This is an area that will need to be addressed in implementation planning, in 
conjunction with local authority partners.  

c. That assurances are given that appropriate training will be given to all NHS and 
London Ambulance staff to ensure accurate assessment in respect of transferring 
patients to Specialist Centres. 

It should be noted that the model of care proposed for complex vascular surgery is 
already in place in inner north east London across Homerton, Newham and the Royal 
London.  There will be no additional requirement for ambulance crews to diagnose 
vascular conditions as the need for complex vascular surgery is determined on 
assessment in A&E by a senior A&E doctor or senior physician/general surgeon.

For children the initial assessment will be undertaken in A&E / paediatric assessment 
and treatment services at the local hospital site.  

d. That designated Specialist Centres have monitoring procedures in place to identify 
pressure points in system so quality of care/services will not be affected. 

The Cardiac and Vascular network have a role in monitoring the time taken to 
diagnose and transfer patients to specialist centres.  Commissioners analyse this 
information to ensure services are running effectively and work with providers to 
ensure any issues identified are addressed.  

Page 49



4Author GH/SDS Status Final  

Version Date 100514 Sensitivity Low 

Storage R:\TrustHQ\Health4NEL\03 Advisory & Decision 
Making\09  INEL JHOSC\INEL Report\H4NEL response 
to INEL JOSC\INEL response 100514v3 

4

e. That assurance is given that all agencies involved in the discharge/transfer of 
patients from specialist centres to local setting have robust governance and working 
arrangement to ensure smooth transition from one service provision to the other. 

This will be considered as part of implementation planning, although as noted above 
this model of care is already in place for complex vascular surgery in inner north east 
London.

Recommendation 4 – Planned Care 

a. That specialist centres such as The Royal London give assurances and can 
demonstrate that co-location of urgent and planned care services will not 
compromise one another or affect the level and quality of care/service provision for 
their local residents. 

b. Assurance is given that designated Specialist Centres / Urgent Care Services 
(UCS) have monitoring procedures in place to identify pressure points in system so 
quality of care/services will not be affected. 

Clear standards will be agreed with all service providers, led by the East London and 
the City Alliance (ELCA) sector acute commissioning unit in relation to both urgent 
and planned care.  This will be linked to the annual contracting process and will 
include clear monitoring mechanisms. 

In relation to specialist centres, the ELCA sector acute commissioning unit (SACU) 
has a role as host commissioner for all London PCTs for Barts and the London. 
As part of this role, the SACU agrees each year a demand and capacity plan with the 
Trust, which provides a monitoring framework to ensure that both urgent care and 
planned care meet quality and access standards; these are defined in the contract 
with the Trust. 

The three INEL PCTs have established a sector-wide Emergency and Urgent Care 
Board, which takes an overview of current and projected future demand on urgent 
care services, and how this is best managed. 

Recommendation 5 – A&E 

a. Assurance is given there is capacity within the system to absorb the additional 
patients expected to attend the other A&E departments remaining within NEL. 

As noted above no changes will be made until the JJCPCT is assured that sufficient 
capacity is in place across the whole of the healthcare system to manage changes 
safely and effectively 

Page 50



5Author GH/SDS Status Final  

Version Date 100514 Sensitivity Low 

Storage R:\TrustHQ\Health4NEL\03 Advisory & Decision 
Making\09  INEL JHOSC\INEL Report\H4NEL response 
to INEL JOSC\INEL response 100514v3 

5

The finance and activity modelling undertaken to support pre consultation business 
case (PCBC) development is currently being reviewed and updated to support final 
decision making and implementation planning. 

The modelling undertaken at pre consultation business case stage suggests that the 
impact of changes to A&E at King George Hospital will impact most significantly 
(from an INEL perspective) on Newham University Hospitals NHS Trust.  The Trust 
will need to plan for between 3,000 and 7,000 additional A&E attendances per year, 
in addition to significant additional growth related to the growing local population. The 
Trust will need to develop additional capacity to manage this work, including 
additional acute medical and surgical beds as well as A&E capacity.  The detail of 
when and how this is delivered will be worked up as part of implementation planning, 
alongside planning for the additional capacity required at Whipps Cross and Queen’s 
Hospitals and I can give an assurance that the JJCPCTs will not approve 
implementation of changes to A&E provision at King George Hospital until they are 
themselves assured that the required capacity is in place across the system. 

The impacts at the Royal London (other than for specialist services highlighted 
above) and Homerton Hospitals are marginal.  

Recommendation 6 – Polysystems (polyclinics) 

a. The Commission requests that the evaluation of the first three polyclinics is shared 
with local health Overview and Scrutiny Committees in NEL once completed. 

b. The Committee recommends and wishes to see all polyclinics established in NEL 
have consistent core services and availability of diagnostics therefore request to be 
notified what the core services and diagnostics in polysystem / polyclinics will be. 

c. The Committee encourages the development of a model of care with integrated 
services in polyclinics that are consistent across the NEL sector. 

Work is currently underway that will enable a consistent approach to the 
commissioning and delivery of core services in polysystems, with additional services 
being provided to meet the specific needs of their localities.  A polysystems 
workforce strategy for north east London is also being developed.  Key components 
of the polysystem work include:  

Core and additional services: Inner north east London has established a joint 
working group to ensure a consistent approach to the development of polyclinics and 
will formally agree the core range of services to be provided within each of the 
polyclinics established in Tower Hamlets, Newham and City & Hackney. This will 
ensure services such as diagnostics are readily available within each polysystem to  
improve access to care closer to home. Each polyclinic may have additional services 
located within the facility to meet local need but this will be in addition to the core 
services as specified locally to comply with the Healthcare for London vision. 

Page 51



6Author GH/SDS Status Final  

Version Date 100514 Sensitivity Low 

Storage R:\TrustHQ\Health4NEL\03 Advisory & Decision 
Making\09  INEL JHOSC\INEL Report\H4NEL response 
to INEL JOSC\INEL response 100514v3 

6

Care pathway development: Work is on-going with leadership provided by the 
Clinical Partnership Group to design care pathways for services to be provided within 
polysystems. The development of one-stop clinics will be prioritised within the overall 
aim of improving the range and quality of services provided within each polysystem.   

Formal evaluation: The 2-year evaluation of polysystems by the London School of 
Hygiene and Tropical Medicine was launched by Commissioning Support for London 
in December 2009. Initial evaluation will focus upon a small group of early polyclinics 
with the first phase of evaluation involving the Loxford polyclinic in Redbridge and the 
second wave to include the Barkantine. Reports will be provided to the Committee as 
they become available.   

This work is being brought together in a sector polysystems Strategic Outline Case 
which is being developed across the three PCTs, to be completed in outline by July, 
focusing initially upon the design of the polysystems across the four boroughs,  the 
core specification for polyclinics together with a high level implementation plan.   

We understand that this will be an area of ongoing interest to the JOSC and local 
OSCs and we will be very happy to provide the Committee and local OSCs with 
regular updates on progress.   

!

Recommendation 7 – IT systems 

a. The Committee seeks to be assured that the Summary Care Record system will 
be implemented on schedule and before the introduction of polysystems. The 
Committee requests details about the new IT system and when it will be operational 
to provide health professionals with access to patient medical history. 

The ELCA Polysystems Programme Board will be working with the PCTs to establish 
a timeframe to implement a common IT solution across inner north east London to 
support both unscheduled appointments to be provided within polyclinics,  and urgent 
care activity concentrated within the UCCs co-located with A&E departments. This 
follows a delay in the roll out of the Summary Care Record (SCR) nationally following 
a dispute between the British Medical Association (BMA) and the Department of 
Health.     In order to agree a revised implementation timetable, PCTs are required to 
work with local GP practices to agree a way forward to meet the following criteria: 
- Residents have been adequately informed about the process and properly enabled 
to opt out should they wish 
- GP practices feel supported and informed to upload data 
- GP practices and the PCT are satisfied that the data is of an appropriate quality for 
sharing
- Sufficient public awareness has been carried out 
- Sufficient professional awareness has been carried out.  

Page 52



7Author GH/SDS Status Final  

Version Date 100514 Sensitivity Low 

Storage R:\TrustHQ\Health4NEL\03 Advisory & Decision 
Making\09  INEL JHOSC\INEL Report\H4NEL response 
to INEL JOSC\INEL response 100514v3 

7

We are happy to provide updates to the Committee on this issue as they become 
available.

!

Recommendation 8 – Housing 

a. The Committee encourages discussions to be held with partners impacted by 
these proposals i.e. housing services and LA and recommends partnership working 
plans are developed. 

Recommendations 9 – Finance 

a. The Committee requests that the NHS and local councils in NE London work 
together to develop a better understanding of the financial implications of the shift 
towards more care being carried out in the community and in people's homes. 

Local PCTs and Trusts are fully committed to working in partnership with local 
partners, including local social services and housing departments, to ensure that the 
overall system works as effectively as possible for the benefit of local residents.  We 
believe this work is best led by local PCTs, linked to sector commissioning 
arrangements as appropriate.  We would be happy to discuss further with the 
committee their view of what the impacts of these changes will be on local authority 
services to ensure that any areas of concern are addressed and appropriate 
monitoring and review arrangements in place.
It should be noted that strong partnership arrangements are already in place within 
inner north east London. Each of the PCTs are fully engaged in their local strategic 
partnerships, which enable development of joint strategies and provide the 
mechanisms to bring together health planning with other key policy areas, including 
housing.  This has resulted in the explicit statement of health objectives in the Local 
Development Framework in Tower Hamlets for example.  

 We recognise that there is concern that changes to acute services (including targets 
to reduce admissions to hospital and reduce acute length of stay) will have an impact 
on social care; however we have yet to see any firm evidence of this and have not 
identified any additional costs.   

In fact we believe that in the medium to long-term, improved care pathways and 
better management of long term conditions will reduce the overall burden of ill-health 
on the health and social care economy.  Improved stroke care is a good example of 
this.  Plans to improve care of long term conditions (LTCs) also point to reducing the 
burden on social care by better managing conditions such as diabetes. This will 
result in fewer people with complex diabetes and related disability. 

New approaches to care package commissioning for LTCs have already led to 
demonstrable improvements in diagnosis and clinical control of those people 
diagnosed, critical steps in avoiding disability and associated social care costs in the 

Page 53



8Author GH/SDS Status Final  

Version Date 100514 Sensitivity Low 

Storage R:\TrustHQ\Health4NEL\03 Advisory & Decision 
Making\09  INEL JHOSC\INEL Report\H4NEL response 
to INEL JOSC\INEL response 100514v3 

8

long term.  Improving management of diabetes in primary care is a common strategic 
initiative in INEL as described in the Operating Plans of the three PCTs.   

More broadly, as part of strengthening commissioning across London, all PCTs and 
London boroughs are reviewing joint working arrangements with a view to 
strengthening these. In some areas this will result in closer joint commissioning 
arrangements which will maximise efficiency and value for money, and not result in 
extra costs for social care. 

We remain committed to working closely with local authority colleagues to ensure 
that resources are aligned effectively to get the best possible outcomes for local 
residents across both health and social care. 

b. The Committee would like to see forecasts of the financial impact of the changes 
in Health for North East London on all parts of the NEL health economy. 

The pre-consultation business case set out the financial modelling for the Health for 
north east London proposals; this will be revisited and reissued for decision-making 
and implementation planning purposes. 

PCT and sector commissioning strategy plans provide a detailed account of financial 
plans and assumptions about relative spend on different types of care. 

If it would be helpful we would be very happy to arrange for an overview of PCT and 
sector commissioning strategy and financial plans to be presented to the committee.  

Recommendation 10 – General 

a. The Committee would like reassurance that Health for North East London is 
confident that the plans will be managed in such a way that will not be to the 
detriment of our most vulnerable residents.  

The primary drive for the changes to services that we have consulted on is to 
improve the health of our local residents through developing the best possible 
services across both primary, community and hospital services.   

The Integrated Impact Assessment will provide an external and independent view of 
the health equalities impacts of the proposals along with recommendation for 
mitigating actions for any negative impacts identified; particularly for disadvantaged 
groups.  The final IIA will be published for consideration by the Joint JCPCT in June.  

At the appropriate stage in the process the JCPCTs will carefully review 
implementation plans to assure themselves that the changes will not adversely 
impact our most vulnerable residents 

Page 54



9Author GH/SDS Status Final  

Version Date 100514 Sensitivity Low 

Storage R:\TrustHQ\Health4NEL\03 Advisory & Decision 
Making\09  INEL JHOSC\INEL Report\H4NEL response 
to INEL JOSC\INEL response 100514v3 

9

Recommendation 11 – Access and Accessibility 

a. Produce robust monitoring framework to capture quality of care, satisfaction for 
whole service provision including transfers between facilities. 

“Benefits realisation” is a core concept as the programme moves towards 
implementation and we will be working to define clearly service standards and 
expected benefits across care pathways from any changes that are taken forward. 
This will build on work that was undertaken during the development of the pre 
consultation business case – see section 3 of that document.   

Recommendation 12 – Travel 

a. Recommend PCTs insist all acute trusts and major healthcare facilities produce 
quality travel plans that cover patients, visitors and staff. 

b. For Travel plans to be approved by Transport for London or highway authority. 

c. A Trust Board Member is given responsibility for transport and access including 
the production, maintenance and periodic review of a comprehensive travel plan. 

d. Seek assurance that patient transport services provided by trusts and PCTs will be 
accessible and reflective of changes e.g. cross border transport for patients. 
Appropriately covering the wider region and takes account of the locations of new 
provisions such as UCC and polyclinics. 

e. Encourage PCTs to hold discussions with relevant highway authorities (TFL, Local 
Authority or Highway Agency) to make sure that clear and adequate signage is 
provided both on site and in the surrounding areas of all new healthcare facilities 
implemented. 

We are absolutely committed to working with our local communities and partners to 
fully understand current and future access and travel issues for local health service 
provision and are committed to making services as easy to access as possible.  Our 
overall strategy is very much based on the ethos of delivering services as close to 
home as possible, with extended access in primary care and polyclinics a key 
element of this. Set against this is the need to centralise or consolidate some more 
specialist services to ensure quality and safety, as per the proposals under this 
consultation. 

We will be establishing a north east London wide travel and access group that all 
health partners will be linked into.  The draft terms of reference for this group are 
available on request and we would be very happy to discuss this further with you if 
this is helpful. 

Page 55



10Author GH/SDS Status Final  

Version Date 100514 Sensitivity Low 

Storage R:\TrustHQ\Health4NEL\03 Advisory & Decision 
Making\09  INEL JHOSC\INEL Report\H4NEL response 
to INEL JOSC\INEL response 100514v3 

10

The remit of this group will include ensuring that all NHS provider organisations have 
high quality travel plans in place, reviewing patient transport services and liaison with 
local authorities and TfL on improvements to public transport services. We are 
liaising with Tracey Anderson in respect of potential local authority representatives on 
this group. This group will review these recommendations and advise on actions 
needed to take them forward.  

Recommendation 13 - Communication 

a. The Committee recommends the development of a communication strategy for the 
sector and each PCT area giving a clear consistent message about the changes to 
services - facility location, services available, opening times and when and why they 
should use different services. 

b. Communication to the public about the assurance of LAS staff capability and travel 
times to transport patients to the correct health care facility and specialist centre.   

c. Following confirmation of the decision taken by JCPCT. All PCTs to provide the 
public with progress updates about the implementation of the vision across sector 
and in each area. 

We intend to write to all respondents to the consultation (where we have their contact 
details) to advise them of the decisions and recommendations.  We understand the 
ongoing importance of communication with local residents and service users about 
changes going forward and will continue to prioritise communications in the decision 
making and implementation planning phases of the programme.  We will ensure that 
the ONEL People’s Platform and LINks organisations are given the opportunity to 
inform and comment on our communications strategies and materials and would be 
happy to discuss these further with the committee at the appropriate stage in the 
programme.  We clearly recognise the need to communicate clearly with our public 
and patients about what services are available, when, where and how to access 
them and will prioritise this work over the coming year. 

Recommendation 14 – Health Outcomes 

a. The Committee seeks to find out how the different changes taking place in the 
NHS are being considered together and not in isolation and would like assurance that 
the impact of other NHS changes being implemented will be taken into consideration 
prior to any final decision being made. 

The Committee should be assured that the review of acute services is being 
undertaken in conjunction with out of hospital developments. 

Page 56



11Author GH/SDS Status Final  

Version Date 100514 Sensitivity Low 

Storage R:\TrustHQ\Health4NEL\03 Advisory & Decision 
Making\09  INEL JHOSC\INEL Report\H4NEL response 
to INEL JOSC\INEL response 100514v3 

11

The PCTs and sectors Commissioning Strategy Plans bring together at a high level 
the commissioning strategy and financial plans for the next five years including the 
investment in community and primary care planned alongside the containment of 
demand for hospital and specialist services.   

The proposed changes for acute services are also closely linked to some of the 
potential organisational changes – the proposal to create a new trust bringing 
together Homerton, Newham and Whipps Cross is part of the three Trusts’ response 
to the challenges of delivering acute service changes.   

All of these changes, including those to PCT provider services are considered 
regularly by the JCPCTs and Boards of the local NHS organisations.  

Recommendation 15 – Training 

a. That steps be taken to ensure that the impact of staff being relocated and 
detached from the local community does not affect the needs of the individual. 

b. A workforce strategy be produced detailing how staff minimum training needs, the 
impact of the relocation on service provision, workloads and staff travel affected by 
the proposals will be addressed. 

c. Assurance that the impact of other NHS changes being implemented will be taken 
into consideration prior to any final decision being made. 

d. To ensure that the shift to community-led nursing is fully planned for, the 
cooperation of educational institutions to run suitable diploma courses be secured. 

e. How differences in the demographics of staff to community group being served for 
specialist centres and cross border services will be overcome and the needs of each 
community group catered for as they would do at their local service provider. 

We are currently reviewing the workforce implications of the proposals and variations 
to the proposals that have arisen in the consultation process and a summary of this 
work will be provided to support Joint JCPCT decision-making in July.  As we move 
into implementation of any changes, workforce will clearly be a central issue, 
fundamental to the success of any changes.  It will as such be a key area of work 
going forward.  The recommendations above will be considered as part of this work.  

Page 57



12Author GH/SDS Status Final  

Version Date 100514 Sensitivity Low 

Storage R:\TrustHQ\Health4NEL\03 Advisory & Decision 
Making\09  INEL JHOSC\INEL Report\H4NEL response 
to INEL JOSC\INEL response 100514v3 

12

Recommendation 16 – Recruitment 
a. That a strategy for each PCT be produced with details of how the vacancy rates 
for midwives will be reduced. 

See above recommendation 2(b).  PCTs will work with their key local provider to 
develop local workforce strategies, linked to a north east London wide strategy. 

Recommendation 17 – Mental Health 

a. The Committee requests the local PCTs to hold discussions with the East London 
NHS Foundation Trust about co-location of community mental heath teams in 
polyclinics, UCS and GP led health centres to help provide support and expertise 
with assessment or support for a crisis. 

b. The Committee would strongly recommend staff in the new health services set up 
in the community are provided with the correct training, support services to treat, 
manage and refer mental health service users should they present in the service 
provision.

The three INEL PCTs already work collaboratively to commission mental health 
services from the main provider: East London Foundation Trust. 

This arrangement has recently been strengthened through the addition of an East 
London and City Alliance Strategic Executive Group (chaired by Melanie Walker, 
CEO NHS Newham) and a clinical and social care advisory group to address sector-
wide mental health commissioning issues.  One of the priorities for the sector in 
terms of mental health is building skills in primary care including training programmes 
for GPs and community staff groups. This features in the sector Commissioning 
Strategy Plan. 

In addition the Strategic Executive Group has considered potential redesign of  
community mental health team structures and development of primary care capacity 
and skills to ensure a more community-based approach for mental health. This 
approach is now being developed further with clinicians with the objective of a pilot in 
at least one polysystem in INEL in 10/11. Evaluation of such a pilot will inform roll out 
to other polysystems. 

Page 58



Chief Executive’s Office
Aneurin Bevan House 

81-91 Commercial Road 
London 
E1 1RD 

Tel: 020 7092 5840 
Email: alwen.williams@elca.nhs.uk 

14 May 2010 

Dear Chair and Vice Chair 

Final Report of the Joint Inner North East London Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee for Health on the Health for north east London acute services 
review of April 2010 

I am writing to thank you for the Final Report of the Joint Inner North East London 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee for Health on the Health for north east London 
acute services review of April 2010. I would particularly like to thank you for the 
time and attention that the committee has given to scrutinising the proposals and 
for producing such a comprehensive and thorough report. 

I am glad that you broadly welcome the proposals and agree that they provide a 
real opportunity to drive up quality and improve access to healthcare.  I also 
recognise the challenges to successful implementation that you raise; we will be 
considering carefully your recommendations throughout the decision-making and 
implementation planning processes.

This report, along with the report from the Outer North East London Joint Health 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee, will be considered by the ONEL and INEL Joint 
Committees of Primary Care Trusts (JCPCT) when they meet as a Joint JCPCT 
(JJCPCT) in June.    The JJCPCT is then expected to make decisions on the 
proposals at a further meeting in July.   Both these meetings will be held in public 
and I very much hope you will be able to attend. The programme team is also 
arranging a briefing for key stakeholders in early June to which you will be invited.    

Given that decisions are yet to be made on the proposals, the response that is 
attached to this letter sets out our thinking so far on how your findings and 
recommendations will be taken forward.  We are keen to have ongoing dialogue 
with Committee members as the programme progresses into independent review 
and implementation phases. I note also your interest in several areas that you wish 
to receive further information on when available, namely: 

! the potential changes to the organisational structures of Homerton, Newham 
and Whipps Cross Hospitals 

! the development of polysystems and a care out of hospital strategy 

! funding of the London Ambulance Service. 

Page 59



I would be very happy to provide further briefings to the committee on these issues 
as work progresses. 

I look forward to discussing this with you further and to continuing to work together 
to improve the health and wellbeing of the people of East London and the City.

Alwen Williams 
CEO, East London and the City Alliance 

Enclosures: Health for north east London response to recommendations 

Page 60



 1 

  
 

 

 
 
Public, patients and staff have their say on improving hospital services in north east London 
 
Many of the proposals developed by GPs, patients, doctors, nurses and other healthcare 
professionals to reorganise health services in north east London have received broad support from 
local residents. 
 
Over 60,000 documents were distributed and around 10,000 people got involved in roadshows, 
meetings and other events during the Health for north east London consultation which ran from 30 
Nov 2009 to 22 March 2010.  
 
More than 3,000 residents and organisations responded to the consultation offering their views and 
suggestions on proposed changes to health services in the area. The findings, published today, will 
be formally presented at a meeting, held in public, on 13 July at West Ham Football Club.  
 
The Secretary of State has instructed primary care trusts to stop and review their reconfiguration 
proposals with local GPs and local authorities in order to provide assurance that their proposals meet 
additional tests of local support. The findings from this consultation will be carefully considered by 
local clinicians, including GPs, hospital doctors, nurses and other health professionals as part of the 
review process and used to inform a final set of proposals for change. No decisions will be made on 
any of the proposals until this work has been undertaken and all feedback has been reviewed. 
 
Dr Mike Gill, Joint Clinical Director, Health for north east London and Medical Director and Consultant 
Geriatrician at Newham University Hospital NHS Trust said;  
 

“The Health for north east London consultation has been a great success. We discussed our 
ideas for future health services with thousands of people and the feedback shows local people 
and patients want to see real changes in the NHS. People provided us with well-thought 
through answers which will help me and my colleagues during the coming months. We will 
now work closely with local partners to consider all the feedback and pull together a final set of 
clinical recommendations for change. No decisions will be made until this work has been 
undertaken.” 

 
Most respondents to the consultation agreed with the proposal to perform complex vascular surgery 
at The Royal London and Queen’s Hospitals which will lead to better, safer care. The principles of 
separating planned and emergency surgery and separating children’s and adults’ A&Es were also 
welcomed by respondents. A number of the proposals for developing services at King George 
Hospital were also broadly supported including more planned surgery, renal dialysis, specialist 
services for children and enhanced services for adults and older people.  

 
There was more support than disagreement for the following proposals;  

• Providing surgery on children under two only at The Royal London (and not at Whipps 
Cross, Newham or King George Hospital)  

• Providing urgent surgery and complex surgery on children under 15 at The Royal London 
and Queen’s Hospital (and not at Whipps Cross, Newham or King George Hospital)  

• Providing care for children with more complex needs at The Royal London and Queen’s 
(and not at Homerton, Whipps Cross, Newham or King George Hospital) 

• Moving all uncomplicated planned surgery from Queen’s Hospital to King George Hospital 
• The Royal London and Queen’s becoming the major acute hospitals for the sector. 

 

Press release       6 July 2010 

Page 61



 2 

There was more disagreement than support from respondents about; 
• Changing the number of A&Es and maternity delivery departments from six to five  
• Over a third of respondents did not agree with proposals to move A&E and maternity 

delivery services from King George Hospital.  
 
Dr John Coakley, joint Clinical Director of the Health for north east London programme and 
Consultant in Intensive Care Medicine at Homerton Hospital said; 

 
“We are very grateful for the support of Local Involvement Networks (LINks), councils’ Joint 
Health Overview and Scrutiny Committees and other local groups, which have helped us to 
understand the views of thousands of local people. 

 
“More doctors, nurses, GPs and health professionals have been invited to join the clinical 
working groups to review the feedback from consultation. We are also looking at ways we can 
further strengthen the role of councils, patients and the public in shaping local health 
services.” 
 

An independent assessment of the impact of the proposals found that patients would benefit from 
change.   
 
Sir Cyril Chantler, Chair of the Integrated Impact Assessment steering group said;  
 

"The reconfiguration proposals have the potential to bring benefit to the population of north 
east London in terms of improved health, wellbeing and clinical outcomes.  Many of the 
positive impacts would be of particular advantage to people from equality groups, such as 
older people, disabled people, people from BME groups and those living in deprived areas. 
There are some areas of concern and the committee has made suggestions to deal with 
these." 

  
During the consultation respondents expressed concerns about the proposals for maternity services, 
particularly about the size of proposed maternity units.  
 
Carol Drummond, Head of Midwifery, Queen’s Hospital said; 
 

“The most important change we want to make to maternity services is to give every mother in 
north east London the same high quality, one to one care no matter where she lives or where 
she chooses to have her baby. Women who are considered to have a low-risk pregnancy 
should be able to give birth at home or in a less clinical environment if they wish.  

 
“Early in the consultation we recognised that many people wanted smaller, more personal 
midwife-led units to be developed alongside the doctor-led units in the area. Midwives, doctors 
and GPs are now working together to see how we can amend our plans to provide more 
personal care.” 

 
 

ENDS 
 
Notes to editors: 
 

1. Following advice from the Independent Reconfiguration Panel (IRP) the Secretary of State, 
Andrew Lansley confirmed on 24 June 2010 that the Health for north east London consultation 
should continue; “The IRP considers that it is in the best interests of local health services for 
the current consultation process to run its full course…This referral is not suitable for full 
review.” Read the full IRP’s statement here 

 
2. The Secretary of State has introduced a moratorium for all reconfiguration proposals in order 

for the NHS to provide assurance that their proposals meet four new tests (in addition to the 
existing legislative framework). The tests will require reconfiguration proposals to 
demonstrate:  

Page 62



 3 

• support from GP commissioners; 
• strengthened public and patient engagement (including local authorities); 
• clarity on the clinical evidence base; and 
• consistency with current and prospective patient choice.  

 
Over the coming months we will be strengthening our engagement with GPs and local 
authorities and developing proposals that will improve the health of the local population. 

 
In addition to our ongoing work with the JOSCs, informal discussions and consideration of 
council responses to the consultation, we will agree a process to further strengthen our 
engagement with local authorities in line with the Secretary of State’s announcement.  

 
3. The consultation was led by doctors, nurses and other healthcare professionals from: 

• NHS Barking and Dagenham 
• NHS City and Hackney 
• NHS Havering 
• NHS Newham 
• NHS Redbridge 
• NHS Tower Hamlets 
• NHS Waltham Forest 
• Barts and the London NHS Trust 
• Barking, Havering and Redbridge University Hospitals NHS Trust 
• Homerton University Hospital NHS Foundation Trust 
• Newham University Hospital NHS Trust 
• Whipps Cross University Hospital NHS Trust  
 

4. Consultation responses were analysed by external assessors Ipsos MORI who prepared an 
independent report on their findings. Full results of the consultation can be found here  

 
5. An NHS primary care trust (PCT) is a type of NHS trust, part of the National Health Service 

in England, that provides some primary and community services or commissions them from 
other providers, and are responsible for commissioning secondary care.  

 
6. Journalists are invited to attend the meeting of the Joint Committee of Primary Care Trusts, 

5pm – 8.30pm, 13 July, West Ham Football Club. If you require any further information, would 
like to attend the meeting or would like to interview any of our spokespeople please contact 
Una Carney on una.carney@thpct.nhs.uk or 020 7092 5495. The number for urgent out of 
hours queries is 07813 023 740.  

 

Page 63



Page 64

This page is intentionally left blank



Joi
nt 

Me
eti

ng
 of

 th
e I

NE
L a

nd
 O

NE
L

Joi
nt 

Co
mm

itt
ee

s P
rim

ary
 Ca

re 
Tru

sts
 (JC

PC
T) 

Me
eti

ng
13

th
Jul

y 2
01

0

He
alt

h f
or

 No
rth

 Ea
st 

Lo
nd

on
Int

eg
rat

ed
 Im

pa
ct 

As
se

ssm
en

t

Page 65



Int
ro

du
cti

on
In 

Se
pte

mb
er 

20
09

, H
ea

lth
 fo

r n
ort

h e
ast

 Lo
nd

on
 co

mm
iss

ion
ed

 M
ott

 M
ac

Do
na

ld 
an

d 
the

 Pu
bli

c H
ea

lth
 Ac

tio
n S

up
po

rt 
Te

am
 (P

HA
ST

) to
 un

de
rta

ke
 an

 in
de

pe
nd

en
t In

teg
rat

ed
 

Im
pa

ct 
As

se
ssm

en
t (I

IA)
.

Mo
tt 

Ma
cD

on
ald

: a
 w

orl
d-w

ide
 m

an
ag

em
en

t, e
ng

ine
eri

ng
 an

d d
ev

elo
pm

en
t 

co
ns

ult
an

cy,
 en

ga
ge

d i
n p

ub
lic 

an
d p

riv
ate

 se
cto

r d
ev

elo
pm

en
t a

cro
ss 

a b
roa

d r
an

ge
 of

 
ma

rke
ts,

 fro
m 

ed
uc

ati
on

 an
d h

ea
lth

, to
 po

we
r a

nd
 tr

an
sp

ort
.

PH
AS

T:
an

 in
de

pe
nd

en
t s

oc
ial

 en
ter

pri
se

 Co
mm

un
ity

 In
ter

es
t C

om
pa

ny
 (C

IC)
, e

sta
bli

sh
ed

 
an

d r
un

 by
 pu

bli
c h

ea
lth

 pr
ofe

ssi
on

als
.

Th
e j

oin
t II

A t
ea

m 
rep

ort
ed

 to
 an

 in
de

pe
nd

en
t S

tee
rin

g G
rou

p  
(IIA

SG
), c

ha
ire

d b
y S

ir C
yri

l 
Ch

an
tle

r, C
ha

irm
an

 of
  th

e K
ing

’s F
un

d a
nd

 fo
rm

er 
Ch

air
ma

n o
f G

rea
t O

rm
on

d S
tre

et 
Ho

sp
ita

l.

Th
e I

IAS
G i

nc
lud

ed
 m

em
be

rs 
of 

the
 Pe

op
le’

s P
lat

for
ms

, a
n a

sse
mb

ly 
me

mb
er 

of 
the

 GL
A, 

an
d P

ub
lic

 He
alt

h O
ffic

ial
s f

rom
 lo

ca
l P

CT
s a

nd
 NH

S L
on

do
n.

Page 66



Sc
op

e o
f t

he
 In

teg
rat

ed
 Im

pa
ct 

As
se

ssm
en

t
Th

e o
bje

cti
ve

 of
 th

is I
IA 

is t
o i

de
nti

fy 
the

 po
sit

ive
 an

d n
eg

ati
ve

 im
pa

cts
 of

 th
e p

rop
os

ed
 

rec
on

fig
ura

tio
n o

f a
cu

te 
he

alt
h s

erv
ice

s in
 no

rth
 ea

st 
Lo

nd
on

 up
on

 th
e l

oc
al 

po
pu

lat
ion

 an
d t

o 
ide

nti
fy 

mi
tig

ati
on

 m
ea

su
res

 an
d s

tra
teg

ies
Sp

ec
ific

all
y, 

the
 IIA

 fo
cu

ses
 up

on
 im

pa
cts

 in
 th

e f
oll

ow
ing

 ar
ea

s:
•H

ea
lth

 Ou
tco

me
s

•Eq
ua

liti
es 

(Si
x s

tat
uto

ry 
gro

up
s: g

en
de

r, a
ge

, ra
ce

/et
hn

icit
y, 

dis
ab

ilit
y, 

fai
th/

rel
igi

on
, se

xu
al 

ori
en

tat
ion

 –
an

d d
ep

riv
ed

 co
mm

un
itie

s)
•A

cce
ss 

(Tr
an

sp
ort

 m
od

e; 
pa

tie
nt 

flo
ws

; w
ide

r a
cce

ss 
iss

ue
s e

.g.
 pa

rki
ng

, si
gn

ag
e; 

‘so
cia

l 
acc

ess
’)

•C
arb

on
 (P

roc
ure

me
nt 

(e.
g. 

go
od

s a
nd

 se
rvi

ce
s);

 bu
ild

ing
s a

nd
 en

erg
y; 

tra
ns

po
rt)

Th
is w

as 
a c

om
ple

x p
iec

e o
f w

ork
 w

hic
h c

on
seq

ue
ntl

y h
as 

co
ns

ide
rab

le 
de

tai
l in

 th
e r

ep
ort

Th
is d

ep
th 

of 
inf

orm
ati

on
 en

ab
les

 en
ha

nc
em

en
t/m

itig
ati

on
 ac

tio
n t

o b
e t

arg
ete

d a
nd

 al
so

 
ass

ure
s t

ran
sp

are
nc

y 

Page 67



W
ha

t is
 an

 He
alt

h I
IA?

•
An

 as
ses

sm
en

t o
f p

lan
s, p

roj
ec

ts,
 pr

og
ram

me
s o

r p
oli

cie
s p

rio
r t

o i
mp

lem
en

tat
ion

•
Pre

dic
ts 

the
 im

pa
cts

 of
 th

ese
 pr

op
os

als
•

Re
co

mm
en

ds
 en

ha
nc

em
en

t a
nd

 m
itig

ati
on

 m
ea

su
res

 an
d s

tra
teg

ies
•

He
alt

h I
IA 

–f
oc

us
es 

on
 ‘h

ea
lth

 an
d w

ell
 be

ing
’ra

the
r t

ha
n j

us
t s

erv
ice

 pr
ov

isio
n o

r c
lin

ica
l 

car
e a

nd
 ut

ilis
es 

bo
th 

qu
an

tita
tiv

e a
nd

 qu
ali

tat
ive

 da
ta

•
Qu

ali
tat

ive
 ev

ide
nc

e i
s k

ey
 as

 it:
–

Inc
orp

ora
tes

 ‘re
al 

wo
rld

’e
xp

eri
en

ce
, k

no
wl

ed
ge

, o
pin

ion
s a

nd
 pe

rce
pti

on
s

–
Pro

vid
es

 us
efu

l in
for

ma
tio

n o
n c

ert
ain

 im
pa

cts
 w

he
re 

it i
s n

ot 
po

ssi
ble

 to
 m

ak
e a

 qu
an

tit
ati

ve
 es

tim
ate

–
Pro

vid
es

 ne
w 

pe
rsp

ec
tiv

es
 on

 he
alt

h i
ne

qu
ali

tie
s t

ha
t m

ay
 no

t e
me

rge
 fr

om
 qu

an
tit

ati
ve

 fin
din

gs
•

An
 IIA

 It 
is n

ot 
de

sig
ne

d t
o p

rod
uc

e n
ew

 re
sea

rch
•

Ac
tiv

itie
s in

clu
de

:
–

Ac
ce

ssi
ng

 re
so

urc
es

–
Ide

nti
fyi

ng
 st

ak
eh

old
ers

–
Ga

the
rin

g a
nd

 an
aly

sin
g q

ua
nti

tat
ive

 an
d q

ua
lita

tiv
e d

ata
–

Sy
nth

es
isin

g a
nd

 ap
pra

isin
g i

nfo
rm

ati
on

Page 68



As
se

ssm
en

t M
eth

od
olo

gy

•
Do

cu
me

nta
tio

n R
ev

iew
–

Cli
nic

al 
W

ork
ing

 an
d C

lin
ica

l R
efe

ren
ce

 Gr
ou

ps
 pa

pe
rs,

 Pr
e C

on
su

lta
tio

n B
us

ine
ss 

Ca
se

, P
ati

en
t S

urv
ey

s, J
SN

As
 (Jo

int
 St

rat
eg

ic N
ee

ds
 As

se
ssm

en
ts)

, Ip
so

s M
OR

I a
nd

 
Ar

tic
le 

13
 Re

po
rts

•
Sta

ke
ho

lde
r E

ng
ag

em
en

t
–

Fa
cili

tat
ed

 w
ork

sh
op

s, 1
:1 

me
eti

ng
s, T

rad
itio

na
lly

 Un
de

r r
ep

res
en

ted
 Gr

ou
ps

  
(TU

G)
 m

ee
tin

gs
•

Ac
ce

ss 
Mo

de
llin

g
–

Pri
va

te,
 Pu

bli
c t

ran
sp

ort
•

Ac
ce

ss 
As

ses
sm

en
t

–
Sit

e v
isit

s
–

Int
erv

iew
s w

ith
 PA

Ls
•

Ca
rbo

n E
mi

ssi
on

s M
od

ell
ing

Page 69



He
ad

lin
e F

ind
ing

s
•

Fo
r a

ll s
erv

ice
s, i

mp
rov

ed
 he

al
th

 a
nd

 cl
in

ica
l o

ut
co

m
es

 is 
the

 m
ajo

r b
en

efi
t o

f th
e 

pro
po

sal
s a

nd
 ou

tw
eig

hs
 th

e d
isa

dv
an

tag
es,

 e.
g. 

lon
ge

r t
rav

el 
tim

es.
•

In 
ter

ms
 of

 ac
ce

ss
, a

ve
rag

e t
rav

el 
tim

es,
 fo

r b
oth

 pr
iva

te 
an

d p
ub

lic 
tra

ns
po

rt 
wo

uld
 

inc
rea

se 
for

 al
l o

f th
e s

erv
ice

s. 
–

Th
e t

rav
el 

im
pa

cts
 ar

e h
igh

est
 fo

r t
he

 m
os

t c
om

ple
x s

erv
ice

s w
hic

h h
av

e t
he

 lo
we

st 
de

ma
nd

 e.
g s

urg
ery

 fo
r t

he
 un

de
r t

wo
 ye

ar 
old

s a
nd

 co
mp

lex
 va

scu
lar

 su
rge

ry
–

Fo
r t

he
 hi

gh
er 

de
ma

nd
 se

rvi
ce

s e
.g 

A&
E a

nd
 m

ate
rni

ty 
de

liv
ery

 se
rvi

ce
s t

he
 im

pa
ct 

up
on

 
tra

ve
l ti

me
s is

 le
ss 

wi
th 

av
era

ge
 jo

urn
ey

 tim
es 

inc
rea

sin
g b

y 4
 an

d 5
 m

inu
tes

 re
sp

ec
tiv

ely
•

In 
mo

st 
cas

es,
hig

h d
em

an
d s

erv
ice

s s
uc

h a
s o

utp
ati

en
ts 

(in
clu

din
g a

nte
 an

d p
os

t n
ata

l 
clin

ics
) a

nd
 di

ag
no

sti
cs 

wo
uld

 be
 pr

ov
ide

d i
n s

ett
ing

s c
los

er 
to

ho
me

 su
ch

 as
 ur

ge
nt 

car
e 

ce
ntr

es 
an

d o
the

r c
om

mu
nit

y b
ase

d s
ett

ing
s s

uc
h a

s p
oly

clin
ics

 an
d c

hil
dre

n's
 ce

ntr
es.

•
Th

e p
rop

os
als

 ar
e l

ike
ly 

to 
de

liv
er 

ca
rb

on
red

uc
tio

ns
 in

 fu
tur

e c
om

pa
red

 to
 th

e “
do

 
mi

nim
um

”s
ce

na
rio

 th
rou

gh
 pa

tie
nts

 be
ing

 tr
ea

ted
 clo

ser
 to

 ho
me

 an
d i

nc
rea

sin
gly

 
eff

icie
nt 

bu
ild

ing
 us

e.

Page 70



Po
ten

tia
l P

os
itiv

e I
mp

ac
ts 

an
d O

pp
or

tu
nit

ies

•
Im

pa
ct:

Im
pro

ve
d h

ea
lth

 an
d c

lin
ica

l o
utc

om
es

•
Im

pa
ct:

Ac
ce

ss 
to 

mo
re 

sp
ec

ial
ist

 ca
re 

Op
po

rtu
nit

y:
To

 en
su

re 
tha

t t
he

 ne
w 

arr
an

ge
me

nts
 ar

e w
ell

 co
mm

un
ica

ted
 to

 
res

ide
nts

, G
Ps

 an
d h

ea
lth

 ca
re 

wo
rke

rs.
 Co

ns
ist

en
t a

nd
 su

sta
ine

dc
om

mu
nic

ati
on

 w
ill 

be
 

ne
ce

ssa
ry 

to 
bu

ild
 a 

‘cu
ltu

re 
of 

co
nfi

de
nc

e’
am

on
gst

 pa
tie

nts
 an

d e
arn

 th
eir

 tr
us

t in
 th

e 
ne

w 
se

rvi
ce

 m
od

el.
Op

po
rtu

nit
y:

Im
pro

ve
d c

lin
ica

l o
utc

om
es

 an
d h

ea
lth

 be
ne

fits
 w

ou
ld 

on
ly 

be
 de

riv
ed

 
thr

ou
gh

 th
e e

ffe
cti

ve
 im

ple
me

nta
tio

n o
f th

e r
ec

on
fig

ura
tio

n p
rop

os
als

. It
 is 

rec
og

nis
ed

 
tha

t t
his

 pr
ov

ide
s H

ea
lth

 fo
r n

ort
h e

ast
 Lo

nd
on

 w
ith

 th
e o

pp
ort

un
ity

 to
 de

ve
lop

 a 
sys

tem
ati

c a
nd

 co
mp

reh
en

siv
e s

tra
teg

ic d
eli

ve
ry 

pla
n u

nd
erp

inn
ed

by
 a 

pro
ac

tiv
e 

ch
an

ge
 m

an
ag

em
en

t p
roc

es
s.

Page 71



Po
ten

tia
l P

os
itiv

e I
mp

ac
ts 

an
d O

pp
or

tu
nit

ies

•
Im

pa
ct:

Be
ne

fits
 of

 m
ore

 co
mm

un
ity

-ba
se

d c
are

Op
po

rtu
nit

y:
Wi

th 
the

 de
ve

lop
me

nt 
of 

ne
w 

po
lys

yst
em

s, n
ee

d t
o e

ns
ure

  
en

co
ura

ge
me

nt 
of 

 in
ter

fac
es

 be
tw

ee
n h

ea
lth

 an
d s

oc
ial

 ca
re 

an
d p

rov
ide

 a 
tot

al 
ca

re 
pa

cka
ge

 in
 on

e s
ett

ing
.

•
Im

pa
ct:

Re
du

ce
d c

arb
on

 em
iss

ion
s

Op
po

rtu
nit

y:
De

ve
lop

me
nt 

of 
ca

rbo
n r

ed
uc

tio
n p

lan
s f

or 
ea

ch
 of

 th
e h

os
pit

als
 af

fec
ted

 
by

 th
e p

rop
os

als
, fo

cu
ssi

ng
 on

 su
ch

 iss
ue

s a
s: 

en
erg

y a
nd

 ca
rbo

nm
an

ag
em

en
t; 

pro
cu

rem
en

t a
nd

 fo
od

; w
ate

r; t
rav

el,
 tr

an
sp

ort
 an

d a
cce

ss;
 w

ast
e; 

an
d f

ina
nc

e.

Page 72



Po
ten

tia
l N

eg
ati

ve
 Im

pa
cts

 an
d M

itig
ati

on
s

•
Im

pa
ct:

Co
nfu

sio
n f

or 
pa

tie
nts

 an
d t

he
ir r

ela
tiv

es 
reg

ard
ing

 w
he

re 
to 

go
to 

acc
ess

 th
e h

ea
lth

 ca
re 

ser
vic

es 
tha

t th
ey

 ne
ed

M
itig

ati
on

:G
oo

d c
om

mu
nic

ati
on

 be
tw

ee
n h

os
pit

als
, G

Ps 
an

d p
rim

ary
 ca

re 
an

d l
oc

al 
co

mm
un

itie
s.  

Pro
toc

ols
 an

d t
ran

sfe
r a

rra
ng

em
en

ts 
wi

ll a
lso

 ne
ed

 to
 be

 de
ve

lop
ed

 ac
ros

s N
EL 

wi
th 

the
 Lo

nd
on

 
Am

bu
lan

ce
 Se

rvi
ce

.
•

Im
pa

ct:
Mo

re 
co

mp
lica

ted
 di

sch
arg

e a
nd

 af
ter

 ca
re 

arr
an

ge
me

nts
M

itig
ati

on
: T

o e
sta

bli
sh

 pr
oto

co
ls f

or 
pa

tie
nt 

tra
nsf

er,
 di

sch
arg

e a
nd

 re
ha

bil
ita

tio
n. 

Th
is w

ill 
ne

ed
 to

 be
 

acr
os

s B
oro

ug
hs

 an
d a

cro
ss 

PC
Ts.

 Th
is i

s n
ec

ess
ary

 du
rin

g b
oth

 th
e t

ran
sit

ion
al 

ph
ase

, a
nd

 th
e p

eri
od

 
fol

low
ing

 fu
ll i

mp
lem

en
tat

ion
.

•
Im

pa
ct:

Ne
ga

tiv
e t

rav
el 

im
pa

cts
 ar

e l
ike

ly t
o b

e f
elt

 by
 ca

rer
s, r

ela
tiv

es 
an

d v
isit

ors
 m

ore
 th

an
 pa

tie
nts

 . I
n 

ma
ny

 ca
ses

, jo
urn

ey
 tim

es 
wi

ll i
nc

rea
se 

an
d t

rav
el 

ma
y b

e l
ess

 fa
mi

lia
r to

 di
ffe

ren
t h

os
pit

als
, w

ith
 so

me
 

ho
sp

ita
ls b

ein
g s

ub
jec

t to
 ca

r p
ark

ing
 ca

pa
cit

y d
iffi

cu
ltie

s. P
art

icu
lar

ly a
ffe

cte
d W

ard
s f

all
 w

ith
in 

the
 

Bo
rou

gh
s o

f R
ed

bri
dg

e, 
Ha

ve
rin

g a
nd

 W
alt

ha
m 

Fo
res

t.
M

itig
ati

on
:P

rov
isio

n o
f c

om
pre

he
ns

ive
 tra

ve
l in

for
ma

tio
n; 

pro
vis

ion
 of

 cle
ar 

pu
bli

c s
ign

ag
e t

o e
ach

 
ho

sp
ita

l; e
ns

uri
ng

 th
at 

pro
vid

ers
 ha

ve
 hi

gh
 qu

ali
ty 

tra
ve

l p
lan

sin
 pl

ace
 fo

r p
ati

en
ts,

 st
aff

 an
d v

isit
ors

; 
de

ve
lop

me
nt 

of 
a f

are
 co

nc
ess

ion
 sc

he
me

 su
bs

idi
sin

g p
ub

lic 
tra

nsp
ort

, ta
xi t

rip
s, o

r p
ark

ing
 ch

arg
es;

 to
 

im
pro

ve
/pr

ov
ide

 ac
co

mm
od

ati
on

 ar
ran

ge
me

nts
 an

d f
aci

liti
es 

on
-si

te;
 an

d t
o a

dd
res

s a
va

ila
ble

 ca
r p

ark
s, 

the
ir i

nc
on

sis
ten

cie
s in

 pr
ice

s.

Page 73



Po
ten

tia
l N

eg
ati

ve
 Im

pa
cts

 an
d M

itig
ati

on
s

•
Im

pa
ct:

Ex
tra

 pr
ess

ure
 on

 ex
ist

ing
 sit

es 
an

d s
erv

ice
s, m

ate
rni

ty 
un

its
 in

 pa
rtic

ula
r

M
itig

ati
on

: R
ev

iew
 an

d r
ed

esi
gn

 of
 ex

ist
ing

 cli
nic

al 
an

d o
pe

rat
ion

al 
pro

ce
sse

s t
o m

axi
mi

se 
pa

tie
nt 

flo
w 

 
an

d d
em

an
d m

an
ag

em
en

t a
nd

 ac
hie

ve
 op

tim
al 

len
gth

 of
 st

ay
 fo

r h
igh

 vo
lum

e c
on

dit
ion

s. 
M

itig
ati

on
:D

ev
elo

pm
en

t o
f a

lte
rna

tiv
e m

od
els

 of
 ca

re 
for

 th
e m

an
ag

em
en

t o
f lo

ng
 te

rm
 co

nd
itio

ns
 to

 
av

oid
 un

ne
ce

ssa
ry 

ad
mi

ssi
on

s, i
nc

lud
ing

 th
e u

se 
of 

nu
rse

 le
d c

om
mu

nit
y b

ase
d c

lin
ics

 an
d ‘

Ex
pe

rt P
ati

en
t’

sel
f m

an
ag

em
en

t p
rog

ram
me

s.
M

itig
ati

on
:T

o d
ev

elo
p w

ell
-in

teg
rat

ed
 se

rvi
ce

s w
ith

 th
e m

ajo
rity

 of
 an

te-
na

tal
 an

d p
os

t-n
ata

l ca
re 

loc
ate

d 
in 

the
 co

mm
un

ity
, w

hic
h o

ffe
rs 

the
 po

ssi
bil

ity
 of

 ha
vin

g c
o-l

oc
ate

d l
ow

 ris
k u

nit
s r

un
 by

 m
idw

ive
s t

o a
ssi

st 
wi

th 
the

 qu
ali

ty 
of 

car
e.

•
Im

pa
ct:

An
xie

ty 
ex

pre
sse

d a
bo

ut 
the

 po
ten

tia
l fo

r r
ed

uc
ed

 se
ns

itiv
ity

 to
 eq

ua
lity

 gr
ou

p n
ee

ds
 

M
itig

ati
on

:W
hil

st 
so

me
 pr

ov
ide

rs 
ha

ve
 re

co
gn

ise
d e

xp
ert

ise
 in

 m
ee

tin
g t

he
 ne

ed
s o

f th
eir

 lo
cal

 po
pu

lat
ion

s a
nd

 
eq

ua
liti

es 
gro

up
s (e

.g.
 Ho

me
rto

n, 
Ne

wh
am

) o
the

rs 
ne

ed
 to

 w
ork

 to
en

sur
e t

ha
t, i

n c
on

tex
t o

f N
ELs

 di
ve

rse
 

po
pu

lat
ion

, th
ey

 co
nti

nu
ou

sly
 re

vie
w 

ho
w 

we
ll t

he
y d

o t
his

, ta
kin

g i
nto

 ac
co

un
t th

eir
 cu

rre
nt 

/ n
ew

 pa
tie

nt 
po

pu
lat

ion
s. I

n p
art

icu
lar

 in
 th

e l
igh

t o
f th

ese
 pr

op
os

als
 BL

T a
nd

 Qu
ee

ns 
wi

ll n
ee

d t
o d

em
on

str
ate

 ho
w 

the
y w

ill 
en

sur
e n

ee
ds 

of 
‘ne

w’
pa

tie
nts

 w
ill b

e m
et.

 
•

Im
pa

ct:
Re

du
cti

on
 in

 pa
tie

nt 
ch

oic
e

M
itig

ati
on

: T
o e

ns
ure

 ef
fec

tiv
e c

om
mu

nic
ati

on
 as

 to
 w

hy
 th

e c
on

ce
ntr

ati
on

 of
ser

vic
es 

is t
ak

ing
 pl

ace
 an

d 
wh

ere
 ch

oic
e r

em
ain

s. 

Page 74



Ke
y I

mp
lem

en
tat

ion
 Fa

cto
rs

Su
cce

ssf
ul 

im
ple

me
nta

tio
n w

ill 
req

uir
e a

n i
nte

gra
ted

 ap
pro

ac
h i

nc
lud

ing
:

•
Eff

ec
tiv

e c
lin

ica
l n

etw
ork

s in
clu

din
g a

cro
ss 

pri
ma

ry,
 se

co
nd

ary
 an

d c
om

mu
nit

y 
ca

re 
•

Go
od

 cli
nic

al 
lea

de
rsh

ip
•

Be
tte

r li
nk

s b
etw

ee
n a

ll h
ea

lth
 se

cto
rs 

an
d s

oc
ial

 se
rvi

ce
s

•
Int

eg
rat

ed
 co

mm
iss

ion
ing

 ac
ros

s n
ort

h e
ast

 Lo
nd

on
•

Ta
rge

ted
 or

ga
nis

ati
on

al 
su

pp
ort

•
Ap

pro
pri

ate
 us

e o
f m

ile
sto

ne
s

Page 75



•
Th

e p
rop

os
als

 ha
ve

 po
sit

ive
 im

pa
cts

:
–

im
pro

vin
g h

ea
lth

 an
d c

lin
ica

l o
utc

om
es

–
acc

ess
 to

 m
ore

 sp
ec

ial
ist

 an
d c

om
mu

nit
y b

ase
d s

erv
ice

s 
–

red
uc

ed
 ca

rbo
n e

mi
ssi

on
s

•
Th

e n
eg

ati
ve

 im
pa

cts
 in

clu
de

:
–

co
nfu

sio
n f

or 
pa

tie
nts

 an
d t

he
ir r

ela
tiv

es 
an

d c
are

rs 
ab

ou
t w

ha
t s

erv
ice

 to
 ac

ce
ss 

wh
ere

, 
–

mo
re 

co
mp

lica
ted

 di
sch

arg
e a

nd
 af

ter
 ca

re 
arr

an
ge

me
nts

–
slig

htl
y m

ore
 di

ffic
ult

 ac
ce

ss 
to 

ser
vic

es 
for

 so
me

 pe
op

le 
–

red
uc

ed
 se

ns
itiv

ity
 fo

r s
om

e e
qu

ali
ty 

gro
up

s
–

ex
tra

 pr
ess

ure
 on

 ex
ist

ing
 sit

es 
an

d s
erv

ice
s.

•
In 

ou
r o

pin
ion

, th
e p

os
itiv

e i
mp

ac
ts 

ou
tw

eig
h t

he
 ne

ga
tiv

e i
mp

ac
ts 

an
d w

ith
 

ap
pro

pri
ate

 ac
tio

ns
 by

 He
alt

h4
NE

L a
nd

 ot
he

rs,
 an

y n
eg

ati
ve

 im
pa

cts
 ca

n b
e 

su
bs

tan
tia

lly
 m

itig
ate

d.

In 
Su

mm
ary

…

Page 76



•
Jou

rne
y t

im
es 

are
 fro

m 
the

 He
alt

h S
erv

ice
s T

rav
el 

An
aly

sis
 To

olk
it (

HS
TA

T) 
cre

ate
d f

or 
Lo

nd
on

 
He

alt
h A

cce
ssi

bil
ity

 an
aly

sis
.  J

ou
rne

y t
im

es 
are

 fo
r t

he
 AM

 pe
ak

.
•

Av
era

ge
 jo

urn
ey

 tim
es 

cal
cu

lat
ed

 fro
m 

ea
ch

 w
ard

 to
 ea

ch
 ho

sp
ita

l.
•

Du
rin

g t
he

 m
od

ell
ing

 ph
ase

 th
e n

ea
res

t s
uit

ab
le 

ho
sp

ita
l b

y t
rav

el 
tim

e i
s c

on
sid

ere
d t

he
 m

os
t 

su
ita

ble
 ho

sp
ita

l fo
r t

ha
t W

ard
 be

for
e a

nd
 af

ter
 re

co
nfi

gu
rat

ion
.

•
Wa

rds
 ha

ve
 be

en
 us

ed
 in

ste
ad

 of
 Ou

tpu
t a

rea
s b

ec
au

se 
the

y m
atc

h t
he

 pa
tie

nt 
flo

w 
da

ta 
an

d 
are

 m
ore

 co
mp

reh
en

sib
le/

fam
ilia

r t
o t

he
 ge

ne
ral

 pu
bli

c.
•

Pe
op

le’
s p

ers
on

al 
ex

pe
rie

nc
e m

ay
 di

ffe
r, e

.g.
 co

ng
est

ion
.

•
Flo

ws
 re

co
rde

d a
s w

ell
 as

 po
pu

lat
ion

  -
to 

pro
vid

e a
n i

nd
ica

tio
n o

f th
e l

ike
ly 

de
ma

nd
.

•
Jou

rne
y t

im
es 

for
 bo

th 
pu

bli
c a

nd
 pr

iva
te 

tra
ns

po
rt 

ha
ve

 be
en

 m
ap

pe
d a

nd
 ca

lcu
lat

ed
 in

 te
n 

mi
nu

te 
 in

ter
va

ls.
•

Fo
r t

he
 'lo

ng
est

 jo
urn

ey
 tim

e' 
an

d '
hig

he
st 

inc
rea

se 
in 

jou
rne

y t
im

e' 
the

 w
ors

t th
ree

 el
ec

tor
al 

wa
rds

  in
 ea

ch
 m

od
el 

ha
ve

 be
en

 id
en

tifi
ed

.

Tra
ns

po
rt 

Me
th

od
olo

gy

Page 77



Page 78

This page is intentionally left blank



Wh
at 
wil

l h
ap
pe
n n

ex
t

He
len

 Br
ow

n, 
Pr
og
ram

me
 D
ire
cto

r

Page 79



•D
ec
isio

n m
ak
ing

 pa
pe
r

•C
lin
ica

l re
vie

w 
inc

lud
ing

 G
P c

om
mi
ss
ion

ers
•F

urt
he
r s
tak

eh
old

er 
en
ga
ge
me

nt
•F

urt
he
r w

ork
 w
ith
 Jo

int
 O
ve
rvi
ew

 an
d S

cru
tin
y C

om
mi
tte
es
 an

d l
oc
al 

au
tho

riti
es

•R
ev
iew

 go
ve
rna

nc
e a

nd
 de

cis
ion

 m
ak
ing

 st
ruc

tur
es
 to
 ta
ke
 ac

co
un
t o
f 

the
 Se

cre
tar

y o
f S

tat
e’s

 ‘fo
ur 

tes
ts’

•Im
ple

me
nta

tio
n p

lan
nin

g a
nd
 ga

tew
ay
s

•I
ss
ue
s r
ais

ed
 du

rin
g t
he
 co

ns
ult
ati
on

•H
ow

 do
 th
es
e f
ee
d i
nto

 de
cis

ion
 m
ak
ing

?
•W

ha
t in

for
ma

tio
n i
s a

lre
ad
y a

va
ila
ble

?
•W

ha
t fu

rth
er 

wo
rk 
are

 w
e d

oin
g?
 e.
g. 
mo

de
l c
ap
ac
ity
 an

d a
cti
vit
y, 

rev
iew

 po
pu
lat
ion

 pr
oje

cti
on
s, 
pre

pa
rat

ion
 fo
r im

ple
me

nta
tio
n

Ne
xt 
ste

ps

Page 80



•R
ec
og
nis

et
he
 im

po
rta

nc
e o

f a
cc
es
s a

nd
 co

nc
ern

s a
bo
ut 
the

 po
ten

tia
l 

im
pa
ct 
of 
the

 pr
op
os
als

 on
 tra

ve
l ti
me

s, 
pa
rtic

ula
rly
 in
 re

lat
ion

 to
 Ki

ng
 G
eo
rge

 
Ho

sp
ita
l

•U
nd
ers

tan
d c

on
ce
rns

 re
ga
rdi
ng
 ac

cu
rac

y o
f H

ea
lth
 fo
r n

ort
h e

as
tL
on
do
n 

tra
ve
l a
na
lys

is,
 ho

we
ve
r it
 is
 ba

se
d o

n T
ran

sp
ort

 fo
r L

on
do
n’s

ap
pro

ve
d 

mo
de
l

•L
oc
al 
wh

ere
 po

ss
ibl
e /
 ca

re 
ou
tsi
de
 of
 ho

sp
ita
l is

 th
e k

ey
 pr

inc
ipl
e

•T
rav

el 
ad
vis

ory
 gr

ou
p t
o a

dd
res

s c
urr

en
t c
on
ce
rns

 an
d t
o l
oo
k a

t w
ay
s t
o 

mi
tig
ate

 im
pa
ct 
of 
an
y f
utu

re 
ch
an
ge
s

•R
ela

tiv
e s

tar
t a
nd
 fin

ish
 po

int
s i
mp

ort
an
t to

 un
de
rst
an
d n

ot 
jus

t a
bs
olu

te 
tra

ve
l ti
me

 im
pa
cts

 fo
r a

ffe
cte

d a
rea

s…

Tr
av
el

Page 81



31
.6

 

46
.3

 

41
.7

 

60
.5

 
61

.6
 

55
.7

 
53

.9
 

83
.2

 

31
.6

 

46
.3

 

41
.7

 

60
.5

 
61

.6
 

63
.1

 

53
.9

 

83
.2

 

-

10
.0

 

20
.0

 

30
.0

 

40
.0

 

50
.0

 

60
.0

 

70
.0

 

80
.0

 

90
.0

 

Ha
ckn

ey
Ne

wh
am

To
we

r H
am

let
s

Ba
rki

ng
 an

d 
Da

ge
nh

am
Ha

ve
rin

g
Re

db
rid

ge
Wa

lth
am

 Fo
res

t
Ep

pin
g F

ore
st

Minutes

Lo
ng

es
t Jo

ur
ne

ys 
to 

Ne
are

st 
Ac

cid
en

t &
 Em

erg
en

cy 
Ho

sp
ita

l b
y P

ub
lic

 Tr
an

sp
or

t B
efo

re 
an

d A
fte

r R
ec

on
fig

ura
tio

n b
y B

or
ou

gh

Be
fo
re

Af
te
rTr
av
el

Page 82



22
.7

 
23

.6
 

23
.4

 
22

.7
 

24
.1

 

21
.8

 
20

.5
 

28
.5

 

22
.7

 
23

.6
 

23
.4

 
24

.3
 

24
.1

 

26
.9

 

20
.5

 

28
.5

 

-5.
0 

10
.0

 

15
.0

 

20
.0

 

25
.0

 

30
.0

 

Ha
ckn

ey
Ne

wh
am

To
we

r H
am

let
s

Ba
rki

ng
 an

d 
Da

ge
nh

am
Ha

ve
rin

g
Re

db
rid

ge
Wa

lth
am

 Fo
res

t
Ep

pin
g F

ore
st

Minutes

Lo
ng

es
t Jo

ur
ne

ys 
to 

Ne
are

st 
Ac

cid
en

t &
 Em

erg
en

cy 
Ho

sp
ita

l b
y P

riv
ate

 Ca
r B

efo
re 

an
d 

Af
ter

 Re
co

nfi
gu

rat
ion

 by
 Bo

ro
ug

h
Be

fo
re

Af
te
rTr
av
el

Page 83



Me
eti
ng
 of
 th
e J

oin
t C

om
mi
tte
es
 of
 PC

Ts
13
 Ju

ly 
20
10

Page 84


	Agenda
	Burdett House, Mile End Hospital, Site Map and Travel Directions
	MILE END HOSPITAL how to find (2)

	2 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
	3 UNRESTRICTED MINUTES
	5.2 Six Lives Panel Project - NHS London Health Self-Assessment
	Health Scrutiny Panel brief final July 2010

	5.3 Health Scrutiny Evaluation - Summary and Action Plan
	5.4 Health Scrutiny Panel Work Programme 2010/11 - 2011- 2012
	5.5 Health for North East London - Response to INEL JOSC recommendations
	H4NEL Response agenda item 5
	Consultation Results Press Release 100706 (2)
	6 IIA agenda item 5b
	7 What will happen next


